Public Document Pack

CYNGOR .
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr Slr Y Ffllnt
Head of Legal and Democratic Services Ay . .
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd FllﬁtShIrE

COUMNTY COUNCIL

To: ClIir Tony Sharps (Chairman)

) . ) CSING
Councillors: Jim Falshaw and Mike Reece

31 May 2013

Nicola Gittins 01352 702350

Dear Sir / Madam

A meeting of the LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE will be held in the CLWYD
COMMITTEE ROOM, COUNTY HALL, MOLD CH7 6NA on THURSDAY, 6TH
JUNE, 2013 at 9.30 AM to consider the following items.

Yours faithfully

P

Democracy & Governance Manager

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING
DECLARATIONS)

County Hall, Mold. CH7 6NA

Tel. 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4
www.flintshire.gov.uk

Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug. CH7 6NR
Ffon 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4
www.siryfflint. gov.uk

The Council welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English
Mae'r Cyngor yn croesawau gohebiaeth yn y Cymraeg neu'r Saesneg



LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 - TO
CONSIDER THE EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following item is considered to be exempt by virtue of Paragraph(s) 12, 18
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

The public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest
in disclosing the information. Disclosure of sensitive personal information
would cause unnecessary distress to the individual and may prejudice making
a decision on an objective basis.

APPLICATION FOR A PRIVATE HIRE / HACKNEY CARRIAGE (JOINT)
DRIVER LICENCE (Pages 1 - 20)

For Members to consider and determine an application for a Private Hire /
Hackney Carriage (Joint) Driver Licence

MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE INVITED BACK INTO THE
ROOM FOR THE REMAINDER OF THE MEETING

REVIEW OF A CLUB PREMISES CERTIFICATE (Pages 21 - 120)

For Members to consider and determine an application made by the Licensing
Authority for Review of a Club Premises Certificate at Coed Llai Club,
Leeswood,.




Agenda Item 3

By virtue of paragraph(s) 12, 18 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 1



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



By virtue of paragraph(s) 12,13 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



By virtue of paragraph(s) 12,13 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



By virtue of paragraph(s) 12,13 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



By virtue of paragraph(s) 12,13 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



Agenda ltem 4

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
DATE: THURSDAY, 6 JUNE 2013

REPORT BY: DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENT

SUBJECT: REVIEW OF A CLUB PREMISES CERTIFICATE

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To request that Members determine an application for the review of
the club premises certificate at Coed Llai Sports and Social Club, King
Street, Leeswood.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 An application for a review of a club premises certificate at Coed Llai
Sports and Social Club, Leeswood, was received by the Licensing
Section on 18™ April, 2013. The application was made by the
Licensing Authority acting as a Responsible Authority on the grounds
of the prevention of crime and disorder, the prevention of public
nuisance and the protection of children from harm.

2.02 A number of issues relating to the running of the Coed Llai Sports and
Social Club gave rise to concerns that it may not be satisfying the
requirements laid down in the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of
qualifying clubs. These are specified in the review application.

2.03 The Licensing Authority attempted to seek information from the club
that would enable it to determine whether the club was established
and conducted in good faith in accordance with Part 4 of the Licensing
Act 2003. A written request for information about the governance of
the club was not responded to and repeated attempts to set up
meetings to discuss matters proved unsuccessful.

2.04 The review application plus supporting documents are shown in the
appendices to this report.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  The review process was advertised by the County Council in order to
allow persons to make representations if they wished to do so in
accordance with the requirements within the Licensing Act 2003.

Page 21



3.02

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

The relevant representations received from interested parties are
shown in the appendices.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Members determine the application for review of the club
premises certificate at the Coed Llai Sports and Social Club, King
Street, Leeswood.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None in respect of this report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

As determined by the Licensing Act 2003.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Carried out in accordance with Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003.

APPENDICES

As attached.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Licensing Act 2003
Gambling Act 2005

Page 22



Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act
Guidance issued under the Gambling Act 2005

Flintshire County Council Statement of Licensing Policy.
Flintshire County Council Statement of Gambling Policy.

Contact Officer: Gemma M Potter

Telephone: 01352 703371
Email: gemma.potter@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

DIRECTORATE OF ENVIRONMENT

18 APR 2013

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate pnder-the, o er

Licensing Act 2003 RECEIVED

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I Michael Lovatt

(Insert name of applicant)

apply for the review of a club premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003
for the premises described in Part 1 below

Part 1 — Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

King Street

Leeswood

Flintshire

Post town Post code (if known)
Mold CH7 4RU

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)

Coed Llai Sports and Social Club

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)

CA0015

Part 2 - Applicant details

[ am
Please tick v yes

1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible

authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A) ]
or (B) below)

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below) 4
3) a member of the club to which this application relates ]

(please complete (A) below)

Page 25



(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)
Please tick v yes

Mr [ Mrs [ Miss [ Ms O Other title
(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

Please tick v yes
I am 18 years old or over O

Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

Page 26




(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name and address

Michael Lovatt

Community Protection Manager
Flintshire County Council
County Hall

Mold

Flintshire

CH7 6NH

Telephone number (if any)

01352 703393

E-mail address (optional)
michael.lovatt@flintshire.gov.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please tick one or more boxes v/

1) the prevention of crime and disorder 4
2) public safety ]
3) the prevention of public nuisance 4

v

4) the protection of children from harm

Page 27




Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2)

There have been a number of issues related to the running of the club that
give rise to concerns that it may not satisfy the requirements laid down in the
Licensing Act 2003 in respect of qualifying clubs.

From information held on file the following are relevant:-

Jan/Feb 2011 - suspicion of under age sales of alcohol and smoking in the
premises

July 2011 — concerns expressed by the local Police Community Support
Officer (PCSO) regarding under age sales of alcohol.

March — May 2012 — issues relating to gaming machines

April 2012 — person in the club admitted in Court a public order offence and
possession of cocaine

New Year's Eve 2012 - Fighting in and outside the club — Police called
March 2013 — Assault in the club — Police investigated
April 2013 — PCSO referring to concerns reported by a resident

January, February and April 2013 — reports from an anonymous caller who
complains about under age people coming out of the club in the early hours of
the morning and causing disturbance. In accordance with the Club Premises
Certificate the supply of alcohol should cease at 11:00pm each day (10:30pm
on a Sunday)

It also became evident that the name of the club had been changed to the
Kings Club and it is understood that the Club Rules had been changed. Both
these actions require the submission of a formal notification to the Licensing
Authority and this never happened. These are offences under Section 82 of
the Licensing Act 2003.

A written request for information about the governance of the club was not
responded to and repeated attempts to set up meetings to discuss matters
proved unsuccessful.

Page 28




Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read
guidance note 3)

Following the receipt of information about the altercation at the club on
New Years' Eve 2012 and bearing in mind the previous matters outlined
above the Licensing Authority had concerns about the governance of the club
and decided to seek information from the club that would help to enable it to
determine whether the club was established and conducted in good faith in
accordance with Part 4 of the Licensing Act 2003.

A letter, together with information and guidance was delivered to the club on
11" January 2013. The letter also enclosed a set of questions derived from
Part 4 of the Licensing Act 2003 and a request for a response by 15"
February 2013. A response was never received.

On 21% January 2013 an anonymous caller stated that the person running the
club (Steve) was currently unavailable.

On 22" February 2013 a person named Martin Hughes, who said he was the
temporary manager at the club while Steve Davies was unavailable, came to
County Hall, Mold. His intention was to pay an outstanding fee for a permit
that the club hold enabling them to have gaming machines on the premises.

The Licensing Authority then made a number of attempts to set up a meeting
between club representatives, the Police, the Gambling Commission and the
Licensing Authority with the intention of identifying the current governance
arrangements at the club and discussing the various concerns that existed.

Despite agreeing dates, times and locations by telephone beforehand and
then confirming those in writing the club representatives did not turn up to a
meeting scheduled for 3" April 2013. The meeting was re-arranged for 16"
April 2013 but Martin Hughes left a telephone message on 14" April to say
that they could not attend that meeting either.

In the light of the lack of response to the Licensing Authority's letter of 11
January 2013, the failure to attend agreed scheduled meetings and the
continued concerns over the governance of the ciub as reflected in the
‘grounds of review’ box above it has been decided that the Licensing Authority
(acting as a Responsible Authority under the Licensing Act 2003) should apply
for a Review of the Club Premises Certificate.

Note on the Gambling Act 2005

References were made in letters to the club to The Gambling Act 2005 and a
representative of the Gambling Commission was invited to the proposed
meetings. This was due to gaming machines of unknown provenance believed
to be in use and the premises not being listed on the HMRC Register for
Machine Games Duty. The premises also failed to pay on time the necessary
annual fee to Flintshire County Council for the Gaming Machine Permit,
though did later express a desire to make the payment. The matter has been
put on hold until the Council can establish that the machines are bona fide.

Page 29




The following documents are appended in support of the application:-

OCONOOOHAWN-

10
11

. Copy of the Club Premises Certificate and club rules
. Location plan

. Letter to the club dated 11" January 2013

. File note dated 26™ February 2013

. Confirmatory letter dated 27" February 2013

. File note dated 13" March 2013

. File note dated 20" March 2013

. Confirmatory letter dated 25™ March 2013

File note dated 3" April 2013
. Confirmatory letter dated 9" April 2013
. File note dated 15" April 2013

Incident information in support of the application:-

12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.

File note dated 8" Feb 2011 by Rachael Hughes, Licensing Officer
File note dated 18" Feb 2011 by Rachael Hughes, Licensing Officer
E-mail by PCSO 2896 Andrea Ellis North Wales Police from July 2011
Newspaper report from 16™ April 2012

E-mail from North Wales Police dated 3™ January 2013

E-mail from Rachael Hughes, Licensing Officer 21% Jan 2013

E-mail from Rachael Hughes, Licensing Officer 5™ Feb 2013

E-mail from North Wales Police dated 14" March 2013

E-mail from Gemma Potter, Licensing dated 9 April 2013 °

E-mail from North Wales Police dated 17" April 2013

Page 30




Please tick v’

Have you made an application for review relating to the NO
premises before

If yes please state the date of that application Day Month  Year

HEEEEEEN

If you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were
and when you made them

Not Applicable

Page 31




Please tick v/
yes

e [ have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities v
and the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate,
as appropriate

o | understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my v
application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON THE
STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION

Part 3 — Signatures (please read guidance note 4)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read
guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

N

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 6)

As above

Post town Post Code

Telephone number (if any)

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address
(optional)

Notes for Guidance

1. A responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other
statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area.

2. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.

3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are
included in the grounds for review if available.

4. The application form must be signed.

5. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided
that they have actual authority to do so.

6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

Page 32




Mr K Jones

Nant-y-Coed

Pontybodkin Hill CA0015

Leeswood

Flintshire August 24, 2005

CH7 4RA J Lowe

01352 703376

Dear Mr Jones
Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence: CA0015
Coed Llai Sports and Social Club
King Street
Leeswood
Flintshire
CH7 4RU

I write with reference to your recent application and enclose the Club Premises Certificate detailed
above. This Certificate authorises the use of the premises for qualifying club activities in
accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 and continues to have effect until such time as it is
surrendered or withdrawn.

The Secretary of the Club is reuired to keep the Certificate (or a certified copy of it) at the premises
and to display the Summary of the Certificate prominently in the premises.

If you have any queries in respect of this matter, please contact the Licensing Section on 01352
703030 or email: alcohol.licensing@flintshire.gov.uk.

Yours sincerely

Mo

For Chief Environment & Resources Officer

Page 33



Licensing Section

CYNGOR

1 1 Environment and Regeneration
Sl.r Fﬂlnt Flintshire County Council
Flintshire County Hall
COUNTY COUNCIL Mo]d CH7 6NH

Tel: 01352 703030
Fax: 01352 703441
Email: alcohol.licensing@flintshire.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003 CAOO 1 5

Club Premises Certificate

Club Details

NAME OF CLUB IN WHOSE NAME THIS CERTIFICATE IS GRANTED AND RELEVANT POSTAL ADDRESS OF CLUB

Coed Llai Sports and Social Club

THE POSTAL ADDRESS OF CLUB PREMISES TO WHICH THE CERTIFICATE RELATES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP
REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

King Street, Leeswood, Flintshire, CH7 4RU.

‘fi__g_‘fV\_{HERE THE CLUB PREMISES CERTIFICATE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES*

Not applicable

“QUALIFYING CLUB ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY.THE/CERTIFICATE
- any playing of recorded music
- the supply of alcohol

S THE TIMES THE CERTIFICATE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF QUALIFYING CLUB ACTIVITIES

Activity (and Area if applicable) Description Time From Time To

F. Playing of recorded music (Indoors)
Monday to Saturday 11:00am 11:00pm
Sunday inc Good Fri. midday 10:30pm
Christmas Day midday 3:00pm
Christmas Day 7:00pm 10:30pm
New Year's Eve 11:00am midnight
New Year's Day midnight 11:00pm

L. the supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club, or to the order of, a member of the club for consumption ON the premises
only

Monday to Saturday 11:00am 11:00pm
Sunday inc Good Fri. midday 10:30pm
Christmas Day midday 3:00pm
Christmas Day 7:00pm 10:30pm
New Year's Eve 11:00am midnight
New Year's Day midnight 11:00pm

* THE OPENING HOURS OF THE CLUB

Description Time From Time To

A MR CATDRS  Page 1ot



Licensing Section

r CS“i';?Ry Fflint Environment and Regeneration
- 3 . .

. . Flintshire County Council
Flintshire County Hall
counTYcounctl Mold CH7 6NH

Tel: 01352 703030
Fax: 01352 703441
Email: alcohol.licensing@flintshire.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003
Club Premises Certificate CA001 5]

“WHERE THE CERTIFICATE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE 'ARE ON AND / OR OFF SUPPLIES
L. the supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club, or to the order of, a member of the club for consumption ON the premises only

e A SAdiaSFasSas



CYNGoR Licensing Section

H 1 Environment and Regeneration
4 SI.r y Fﬂlnt Flintshire County Council
Flintshire County Hall
" Mold CH7 6NH

Tel: 01352 703030
Fax: 01352 703441
Email: alcohol.licensing@flintshire.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003
Club Premises Certificate CAOO1 5

Mandatory Conditions

The supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises must
1. only be made at a time when the premises are open for the purposes of supplying alcohol, in accordance with this
club premises certificate, to members of the club for consumption on the premises
2. bein a sealed container
3. only be made to a member of the club in person.

Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

- All conditions contained in 'Coed Llai Sports and Social Club: Rules of the Club' must be adhered to.

A LRI cAGDrS  Page 33



Licensing Section

CYNGOR

1 1 Environment and Regeneration
SI.I' Fﬂlnt Flintshire County Council
Flintshire County Hall
coumreomaL Mold CH7 6NH

Tel: 01352 703030
Fax: 01352 703441
Email: alcohol.licensing@flintshire.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003
Club Premises Certificate Summary CAOO1 5]

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

Coed Llai Sports and Social Club

THE POSTAL ADDRESS OF CLUB PREMISES TO WHICH THE CERTIFICATE RELATES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP
REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

King Street, Leeswood, Flintshire, CH7 4RU.

WHERE THE CLUB PREMISES CERTIFICATE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES

Not applicable

 QUALIFYING CLUB ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE CERTIFICATE

- any playing of recorded music
- the supply of alcohol

" THE TIMES THE CERTIFICATE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF QUALIFYING CLUB'ACTIVITIES

Activity (and Area if applicable) Description Time From Time To

F. Playing of recorded music (Indoors)
Monday to Saturday 11:00am 11:00pm
Sunday inc Good Fri. midday 10:30pm
Christmas Day midday 3:00pm
Christmas Day 7:00pm 10:30pm
New Year's Eve 11:00am midnight
New Year's Day midnight 11:00pm

L. the supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club, or to the order of, a member of the club for consumption ON the premises
only

Monday to Saturday 11:00am 11:00pm
Sunday inc Good Fri. midday 10:30pm
Christmas Day midday 3:00pm
Christmas Day 7:00pm 10:30pm
New Year's Eve 11:00am midnight
New Year's Day midnight 11:00pm

- THE OPENING HOURS OF THE CLUB & oa

Description Time From Time To

WHERE THE CERTIFICATE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND//.OR OFF SUPPLIES '

L. the supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club, or to the order of, a member of the club for consumption ON the premises only

R GATOTS  Raog 4otS




Licensing Section

CYNGOR
1 1 Environment and Regeneration
-y SI.I' y Fﬂlnt Flintshire County Council
Flintshire County Hall
coummreomar Mold CH7 6NH

Tel: 01352 703030
Fax: 01352 703441
Email: alcohol.licensing@flintshire.gov.uk

Li ing Act 2003
icensing Ac Summary CA001 5

Club Premises Certificate

STATE WHETHER ACCESS TO THE CLUB PREMISES BY.CHILDREN IS RESTRICTED OR PROHIBITED '
Not applicable

0 R cAGTs  age sofs



Page 39



Preliminary
i. The name of the Club shall ba The Coed Llai Sports and Social Club.

2. ‘The Clubroom(s) of the Club shall be at that part of the Leeswood Community

Centre shown coloured red on the annexed plans.

3. The objects of the Club shall be:
(a)hmtummdi?smmmotmlm,
wmental and moral improvement, rational recreation, and the other advantages
-of a Club.

-thabu'n.objocu.
4. The Club shall be a members' cjlub and shall consist of ordinary members
together vith such honorary members as are hereinafter mentioned.

Hembership .
. 5. The firat ocdinary members shall be the following eight persons, viz.,
I Derek Cox, Colin Taylor, benk Parsonage, Daniel Davies, Tracey Mauser, Raywond

Evansy Michael Littlehales, Sheila Reid.

#ho, having determined to form themselves into a club more than two days before
these rules are intended to become operative, are in this rule referred to as the
founder members. Every candidate for ordinary membership other than the founder
members amust be proposed by one mesber of the Club and the proposal must be
-seconded by another member, both the propgser and seconder being ordinary wembers
and both vouching for the candidate's fitness for membership. The name and
address of every candidate proposed for ordinary mesmbership, together with the
-names of his proposer and seconder; shall, for a period of at least two clear days
before such candidate is elected, be posted in the Club in the manner prescribed
‘in Rule 29.

‘Membership shall be restricted to so many of the residents of the electoral ward
lof Leeswood who are over the age of 18 years, Every applicant for membership must

|
I
|
|
|
t
i
|
l ~(b) To do all such other things as shall be conducive to the attainment of
I
1
|
[
i
1
l
|
|
|
i
|
I
I
|
I
l
1

Page 40



——— .

P ey

g

sign an application form and submit it to the secretary with written details of
present name, address,

6. mm.mmmhm.qmwmmtuo:
subscription but shall be entitled to all the privileges of membership, may be
elacted by the Club in General Meeting so, however, that there shall not at any
one time be more than one £ifth honorary members.

7. o person shall be admitted to ordinary membership until being a founder
member or having been elected as provided in Rule 5, he shall have paid to thw
Treasurer his first annual subscription.

8. No person, whether as ordinary or honorary member, shall be admitted w
mdnip,ah‘a;m.tﬂduaundldautcmhipmanyotmmvum
&mahiv,.vim;nlntmldntmmda:dayamu
mumcwmmmmmmmm.mwmm
member without prior nomination or application may be admitted to the privilege
otwupvmmcmmmuotu1mmc1mdmmmw
a member and his admission.
9.’\"_'nn-_-£m.udunm.mm-mmmuannnummu
Club in General Meseting; shall be managed by the General Committee of the Club.
mmcﬂwmmgmmmémmmum
members of the Club vho shall be elected annually at the Annual General Meeting «
the Club. They shall all go out of office in every year, but shall be eligib
for re—election.

The General Committee may appoint one or more sub-committees for such purposes
it may deem appropriate. Three members shall constitute a quorum of the Gener
Committes, and two a quorum of s sub-committee.
IO.MMMamwaMam.mmuhdntdfmcm
time by the Club in General Meeting from among the ordinary members of the Clu

. . and other officers of the Club. as the Club may in General Meeting appoint. 1

Page 41



.
-

Secretary, the Tressurer and every such officer shall act in all matters in

acosndanca ‘with the directions of the General Committee of the Club. Subject-to
wdiroctimgimtohinbyﬂnmmcmitm, the Secretary may, on behalf
of the Club, mmucmmomuwmuuwumta
! the efficient and econcmical running of the Club, and may lavfully terminate any

such engagement.

Trustees

u.mmnummuuotmeammmuuminud&mumm
mumwmummmummmmmmqum
menbers who are willing to be so appointed. A Trustee shall hold office during
his life, wmtﬂhc-hallmignbymﬂa!nvdtirqgtmtotheceneml
Committee, wmula:uoluumnmvinghmtmotﬂadaubepassedata
General Meeting of the Club by a majority comprising two thirds of the members

present and entitled to vote.
12. All property of the Club, mmmmmmu.saummdbym
m:«mmkm.mmummnmumw

practicable, for the use and benefit of the Club. on the death, resignation or
removal from office of a Trustee, the General Committee shall take steps tc
mmwmmwmammmmo:ammmm
M:mmnumupmmewwuhmhwtuludmcdcabu
awummmdmmwmmmﬂumdmmmu
constituted after the said appointment.

The Trustees in all respects act, Mtoga:dtounypr:optrl:yottheclm_heldb
them, mwmﬂmmdlmdmoiﬂnmomltw:mdahauhw
pover to sell, lease, mm«pledgomydwmnvforﬂup\mo
raumgorbonwmgmmytotuamﬁtotthemubinmumvichth
Oumitu:';dinctim.mtmpmdmm,lmotmttgaqeeshallbemme
muquinmu:cmymdi:wumhubemgim.

Page 42



Subacriptions, Pinances and Accounts

13. m.mmlmipumtormo:dmmrduubamd\am:mt
exceeding £5.00 as the General Committee may from time to time determine. At the
discretion of the General Committee an ordinary member may be allowed to pay a
reduced subscription for any period less than a year.
14.mmmmmmuummomdnumummmm.a,m
WmﬂMMNﬂIMMthmMM.mm
cunittnnyumhnuunmm&anymmmm
Mpﬁlmmimmﬁmﬂnm&yotw.
ls.mmammdauhupmd\mbookaotmtuﬁumablehmm
present at wuyunnlcumlmumotdnaw.aatmyothertmu
required (on reasonable notice to him) by the General Committee, an accurate
mwmmmmzmamam, including a separate
mmﬂmmmmpmumwywmmmuuum

liquor, torthp:eoadmgyur,u;tcrmammumcaumybo.md
ahallptesmtaﬁlnportuﬂmmtmdingly.

Intoxjcating Liquoe

16. The supply of intoxicating liquor in the Club premises will be permitte
during the following hours-

Weekdays, Sundays, mmmww-mmumm
m;tmmmmwmumngutlmum.
mmmiucugliqm:mllhmlidmmwwwmmmmm
mtbprmisaoﬂmluumbyormbdulfotunm\b. No intoxicating liquo
ahallbempplid!orpaymtcoanymmmmcmbpnmimoﬂnrthan
member.

17. The-General Committee shall arrange the supply of intoxicating liquor by th
Club to mesbers, and to other persons on the Club premises, and shall secure th
due cbservance of the provisions of the Licensing Act 1964 and all Acts relatin
t.heretouﬂofanyemdiuonaattadwdcoanyumhddbyotmbehaltotu

Page 43



Club or to any registration certificate granted in respect of the Club premises.
| 18. o perscn shall be paid at the expense of the Club any commission, percentage
$ oc similar payment oo or vith reference to purchases of intaxicating liquor by the
| uw:mmeMy¢MyMNwmmmit
from the supply of intoxicating liquor by or on behalf of the Club to mesbers or
guuu,apa:ttmanymntamimmmchbu‘m.

General Meetings
19. An Annual General Meeting of the Club shall be held on the lst Monday of
whmm. Notice of the day and time of the Annual General Meeting

muhmwhﬂnmwmmmmibﬁmmlozstotap‘uodof

' at least fourteen days before such day.
m.lmmoftmclmnymmndatwunby:hem

Committee and shall be s0 summoned immediately upon any 5 members (each being
! entitled under Rule 22 to vote) delivering to the General Committee a written
request in that behalf. ‘AmmummuhMWMimamdee
— i thereof to be posted in the Club premises in the manner prescribed in Rule 29 for
a period of at least fourteen days immediately before the day appointed for the
| meeting, but this period may be abridged in the discretion of the General
Committee if the urgency of the business to be discussed in their opinion so
requires.

’ 21, At any General Meeting of the Club every member of the Club shall be entitlec
. wumemmmmxmmmnmmuudmmmu
upon every question raised. In the case of equality of voting, the Chairman of
the ‘meeting (vho shall be a member elected for the occasion by the meeting befor:
, sty other business ia cpened) shall have a casting vote. The Secratary shall tak

minutes of the proceedings at all General Meetings of the Club.

Visitors
22, Members may introduce and entertain guests at the Club, and there shall b

Page 44



kept at the Club premises a Visitors' Book which both the member and his guest
shall sign. The member -1ntroducing a guest shall be responsible for his guest
strictly observing these rules and the Club byelaws and shall not leave the Club
premises before his guest. No person who membership of the Club has been
terminated under Rule 28 or is for the time béing suspended under Rule 26, or
whose application for membership has at any time been rejected, shall be
introduced as a guest; nor shall any member entertain on the premises more than
two guests at any one tim,'mr introduce as a guest the same person on more than

three occasions in any one calendar year.

Byelaws

23. The General Committee may from time to time make vary and revcke byelaws (not
inconsistant with these rules) for the regulation of the internal affairs of the
Club and the conduct of members, and ﬁ\e byelaws for the time being in force shall

be binding on all members.

Conduct of Members
24. M betting shall be allowed in the Club. No lottery shall be promoted by any
member of officer on behalf of or in any way connected with the Club or with any
entertainment or event held by or in connection with the Club without the previous
written authority of the General Committee. Gaming shall be permitted in the Club
so, however, as not to contravene any of the provisions of any statute for the
time being in force.
25. The General Committee may suspend the membership of any member whose conduct,
whether on the Club premises or elsewhere, is or has been in the opinion of the
Committee contrary to the interests of the Club or injurious to its reputation.
26. Imned:-i.'a-tely upon the suspension under Rule 26 of the membership of any member,
the General Committee shall:-

(1) cause to be displayed on the Club notice board a notice stating the name

of the member under suspension and specifying the reasons for that

Page 45



suspension;

(2) summon a meeting of the General Committee for a day not later than 21

days following the suspension;

(3) give notice forthwith by the teoo:ded‘delivery service to the suspended

malberathisaddtesslastmtiﬁedtotheSecretaryuniermleEofhis

suspension and the date of the meeting of the General Committee so that he

may be present, if he so desires to make representations to the Committee

concerning the suspension.

(4) cause to be displayed on the Club notice board a notice of such meeting

informing members wishing to make representations to the Committee concerning

the suspension to do so in writing to the Secretary not later than (seven)

days from the display of the susp'emion notice.
27. At any such meeting any allegations against the suspended member shall be
related (in his presence if he attends) to the Meeting by a member of the General
Committee, and the suspended mesber shall (if he desires) be heard in answer, a
reasonable adjournment to enable him to prepare his answer being allowed him in
the discretion of the Meeting. The decision of the Club at the said Meeting or at
any adjourned Meeting whether to re-instate the suspended member or to terminate

his membership shall be taken by vote and shall be final and conclusive.

Rotices

28. Each member shall keep the Secretary informed at the Secretary's office on the
Club premises of that member's private address, or of some other address at which
communications may be addressed for him. Nevertheless it shall not be necessary
to send any notice intended for members generally to any menmber, by post or
otherwise, except in the case of the notice convening any General Meeting for any
of the purposes of Rule 32. All notices shall be posted by being affixed in a
prominent position on the Club premises in a part of the Club which is frequented
by members, and it shall be thie dquty of the Secretary to ensure that any such

notice remains so exhibited throughout any period required in that behalf by or

Page 46



under these rules.

Alteration of Rules

29. These rules may be revoked, added to ot altered by a majority comprising
two-thirds or more of the members present at and entitled to vote at any General
Meeting of the Club of which notice has been duly given under Rule 20 or Rule 21
specifying the intention to propose the revocation, addition or alteration,
together with full particulars thereof.

Exclusion of Liability

30. Neither the Club nor any officer thereof shall be liable to any member or
guestofamenbezfo:anylossofotdamagetoanypropertyocmrdng, from
whatever cause, in or about the Club premises; nor for any injury sustained by any
member or guest whilst on or entering or leaving the Club premises; and a notice
to this effect shall at all time be displayed in a prominent position on the Club
premises.

Dissalution

31. If the number of ordinary members of the Club shall at any time fall below
ten, or if at any time the Club shall pass in General Meeting by a majority
comprising two-thirds or more of the members present and entitled to vote a
resolution (in 'this rule called "the first resolution") of its intentions to
dissolve, the General Committee , or failing them the Trustees shall take
immediate steps to convert into money all the property of the Club, with power
however to postpone or delay the conversion of any particular property if the Club
in General Meeting shall so autorise. Out of the proceeds of such conversion, the
Trustees shall discharge all debts and liabilities of the Club including the
expenses of of such conversion and any balance remaining in their hands shall be
disposed of by them as the Club in General Meeting shall resolve; and thereupon
the Club shall for all purposes be dissolved. Provided that if the Club shall

“

Page 47



not, within six months after the date of the first resolution, resolve upon the
disposition of any such balance, the same shall be divided equally between all
pecsons vho were ordinary members of the Club at:‘t:he date of the Eirst resolution.
A copy of the notice cmvenimanycmeralueetim under this rule shall be sent
by theSecreta:ybyposttoevetymathisaddrwmtnotiﬁedmme
Secretary under Rule 29 not less than fourteen days before the date appointed for
the Meeting; but any accidental cmission tosendsuchcopyotmemreceipt of

tlasaneahallnotinvalidateanyproceedimsorreeolutim.

Application of Profit
32.lbnmeyorpcopertyottheﬂubotmygainaziaingfrmthecarrymgmo£
tmcllbuybeappliedoﬂlmduﬂmntocﬂnbuwﬁtotunclwasauholeot
uleobjectssetwtinparagnphaqbavecrforsmdnritableorbmmlent
wrposeo:p:rposadwsmby:mlutimofageneralmeting.

Interpretation

33. (a) Words importing the singular or plural shall include the plural and
singular respectively:

(b) Words importing the masculine gender shall include the feminine.

Page 48



sweN
€1L02/v/91 @eq

N S0009¢€ 3 S+0.2€ = ajjua)
69./1 8|88

"010Z 'I1punod Aunog aiysiulld "98e€z000) JequinN sousor TR

‘sBuipaasoud JiAid Jo uognoasoid o) pes) Aew pue JybuAdon aaysjuiy

umolq sebuiyul uogonpoides pasuoyneun Ybukdon umoi) ‘soyjo ._._ ._ -
Aisuonels s Asefepy JoH Jo Jajjonuo) ety 0 Jjeysq uo AsAINg adueuplQ Jo uc__t > .__m
uoissiuuad ay} yum Buiddew Laaing soueupiQ woy peonpoidas st dew siy | ° 200003

J
THOS MBEFZO0UL ‘DRA IR T2 L ~3tH S [y "2 do ) sty

punoibAej

aljuan Aunwwos) poomsoa-]

Page 49



The Secretary

Coed Llai Sports and Social Club

King Street MOL/NFH

Leeswood

Flintshire 11 January 2013

Ch7 4RU Mr M O Lovatt
01352 703393

Dear Sir

Licensing Act 2003 - Club Premises Certificate — Coed Llai Sports and Social Club
Gambling Act 2005 - Club Machine Permit — Coed Llai Sports and Social Club

The Police have informed Flintshire County Council of concerns about the above Club
following an incident that occurred there last New Year's Eve. | understand that the Police
will be contacting the Club directly over this matter.

Flintshire as the Licensing Authority has a responsibility to ensure that clubs comply with
the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003 and the Gambling Act 2005.

Enclosed with this letter are the relevant sections of the Licensing Act and The Gambling
Act that relate to clubs. Also enclosed is an extract from the Home Office Guidance of
October 2012 that covers club premises (Licensing Act) and from the Gambling
Commission Guidance to Licensing Authorities (Gambling Act).

As part of the Council’s need to determine whether Coed Llai Sports and Social Club is
being operated in accordance with the legislation a questionnaire is attached which the
Council invites you to complete and return by 15" February 2013. You may wish to consult
a solicitor prior to completing the questionnaire. A question about gaming machines is
included because according to our records there is no Club Machine Permit in force at the
current time.

In addition to returning the completed questionnaire, please submit the following
documents:-

Page 50



a) Copies of the agendas and minutes of all general committee meetings, extra-
ordinary meetings, special meetings and finance meetings that have been held in

2012.

b) Copies of books of account and other records kept to ensure the accuracy of
financial information for 2012.

c) A copy of the current club rules.

If you have any queries on this letter please contact me.

Yours faithfully

W

Community Protection Manager

Page 51



Licensing Authority Questionnaire — Coed Llai Sports and Social Club

1) Are there any arrangements restricting the club’s freedom to purchase alcohol? If so
please provide details of them.

(2)  What are the rules or arrangements under which money or property of the club, or
any gain arising from the carrying on of the club is or may be applied otherwise than
for the benefit of the club as a whole or for charitable, benevolent or political
purposes?

(3) What are the arrangements for giving members information about the finances of
the club?

(4) What books of account and other records are kept to ensure the accuracy of that

information?

(6)  Who is the chair person of the club?

Page 52



(6)  Who is the secretary of the club?

(7)  Who is the treasurer of the club?

(8)  Who are the members of the club committee?

(9) Does the club have at least 25 members?

(10) What is the current name of the club?

(11) Does the club have a set of rules?

(12) Are there any gaming machines currently at the club?

Signature of Club Representative:
Print Name and Position:

Date:

Page 53



PART 4 of the Licensing Act 2003
CcLUBS
Introductory

Section 60 Club Premises Certificate

(1) In this Act “club premises certificate” means a certificate granted under this
Part—

(a) in respect of premises occupied by, and habitually used for the
purposes of, a club,

(b) by the relevant licensing authority, and

(c) certifying the matters specified in subsection (2).

(2) Those matters are—

(a) that the premises may be used by the club for one or more qualifying
club activities specified in the certificate, and

(b) that the club is a qualifying club in relation to each of those activities
(see section 61).

Qualifying clubs

Section 61 Qualifying clubs

(1) This section applies for determining for the purposes of this Part whether a
club is a qualifying club in relation to a qualifying club activity.

(2) A club is a qualifying club in relation to the supply of alcohol to members or
guests if it satisfies both—

(a) the general conditions in section 62, and

(b) the additional conditions in section 64.

(3) A club is a qualifying club in relation to the provision of regulated
entertainment if it satisfies the general conditions in section 62.

Section 62 The general conditions

(1) The general conditions which a club must satisfy if it is to be a qualifying
club in relation to a qualifying club activity are the following.

(2) Condition 1 is that under the rules of the club persons may not—

(a) be admitted to membership, or

(b) be admitted, as candidates for membership, to any of the privileges of
membership, without an interval of at least two days between their nomination
or application for membership and their admission.

(3) Condition 2 is that under the rules of the club persons becoming members
without prior nomination or application may not be admitted to the privileges
of membership without an interval of at least two days between their
becoming members and their admission.

(4) Condition 3 is that the club is established and conducted in good faith as a
club (see section 63).

(5) Condition 4 is that the club has at least 25 members.

(6) Condition 5 is that alcohol is not supplied, or intended to be supplied, to
members on the premises otherwise than by or on behalf of the club.

Page 54



Section 63 Determining whether a club is established and conducted
in good faith

(1) In determining for the purposes of condition 3 in subsection (4) of section
62 whether a club is established and conducted in good faith as a club, the
matters to be taken into account are those specified in subsection (2).

(2) Those matters are—

(a) any arrangements restricting the club’s freedom of purchase of alcohol;
(b) any provision in the rules, or arrangements, under which—

(i) money or property of the club, or

(if) any gain arising from the carrying on of the club, is or may be applied
otherwise than for the benefit of the club as a whole or for charitable,
benevolent or political purposes;

(c) the arrangements for giving members information about the finances of
the club;

(d) the books of account and other records kept to ensure the accuracy of
that information;

(e) the nature of the premises occupied by the club.

(3) If a licensing authority decides for any purpose of this Act that a club does
not satisfy condition 3 in subsection (4) of section 62, the authority must give
the club notice of the decision and of the reasons for it.

Section 64 The additional conditions for the supply of alcohol

(1) The additional conditions which a club must satisfy if it is to be a qualifying
club in relation to the supply of alcohol to members or guests are the
following.

(2) Additional condition 1 is that (so far as not managed by the club in general
meeting or otherwise by the general body of members) the purchase of
alcohol for the club, and the supply of alcohol by the club, are managed by a
committee whose members—

(a) are members of the club;

(b) have attained the age of 18 years; and

(c) are elected by the members of the club.

This subsection is subject to section 65 (which makes special provision for
industrial and provident societies, friendly societies etc.).

(3) Additional condition 2 is that no arrangements are, or are intended to be,
made for any person to receive at the expense of the club any commission,
percentage or similar payment on, or with reference to, purchases of alcohol
by the club.

(4) Additional condition 3 is that no arrangements are, or are intended to be,
made for any person directly or indirectly to derive any pecuniary benefit from
the supply of alcohol by or on behalf of the club to members or guests, apart
from—

(a) any benefit accruing to the club as a whole, or

(b) any benefit which a person derives indirectly by reason of the supply
giving rise or contributing to a general gain from the carrying on of the

club.

Section 65 Industrial and provident societies, friendly societies etc.

(1) Subsection (2) applies in relation to any club which is—
(a) a registered society, within the meaning of the Industrial and Provident

Page 55



Societies Act 1965 (c. 12) (see section 74(1) of that Act),

(b) a registered society, within the meaning of the Friendly Societies Act
1974 (c. 46) (see section 111(1) of that Act), or

(c) a registered friendly society, within the meaning of the Friendly

Societies Act 1992 (c. 40) (see section 116 of that Act).

(2) Any such club is to be taken for the purposes of this Act to satisfy
additional condition 1 in subsection (2) of section 64 if and to the extent that—
(a) the purchase of alcohol for the club, and

(b) the supply of alcohol by the club, are under the control of the members or
of a committee appointed by the members.

(3) References in this Act, other than this section, to—

(a) subsection (2) of section 64, or

(b) additional condition 1 in that subsection,

are references to it as read with subsection (1) of this section.

(4) Subject to subsection (5), this Act applies in relation to an incorporated
friendly society as it applies in relation to a club, and accordingly—

(a) the premises of the society are to be treated as the premises of a club,
(b) the members of the society are to be treated as the members of the club,
and

(c) anything done by or on behalf of the society is to be treated as done by
or on behalf of the club.

(5) In determining for the purposes of section 61 whether an incorporated
friendly society is a qualifying club in relation to a qualifying club activity, the
society is to be taken to satisfy the following conditions—

(a) condition 3 in subsection (4) of section 62,

(b) condition 5 in subsection (6) of that section,

(c) the additional conditions in section 64.

(6) In this section “incorporated friendly society” has the same meaning as in
the Friendly Societies Act 1992 (see section 116 of that Act).

Section 66 Miners’ welfare institutes

(1) Subject to subsection (2), this Act applies to a relevant miners’ welfare
institute as it applies to a club, and accordingly—

(a) the premises of the institute are to be treated as the premises of a club,
(b) the persons enrolled as members of the institute are to be treated as the
members of the club, and

(c) anything done by or on behalf of the trustees or managers in carrying

on the institute is to be treated as done by or on behalf of the club.

(2) In determining for the purposes of section 61 whether a relevant miners’
welfare institute is a qualifying club in relation to a qualifying club activity, the
institute is to be taken to satisfy the following conditions—

(a) condition 3 in subsection (4) of section 62,

(b) condition 4 in subsection (5) of that section,

(c) condition 5 in subsection (6) of that section,

(d) the additional conditions in section 64.

(3) For the purposes of this section—

(a) “miners’ welfare institute” means an association organised for the

social well-being and recreation of persons employed in or about coal
mines (or of such persons in particular), and

(b) a miners’ welfare institute is “relevant” if it satisfies one of the

Page 56



following conditions.

(4) The first condition is that—

(a) the institute is managed by a committee or board, and

(b) at least two thirds of the committee or board consists—

(i) partly of persons appointed or nominated, or appointed or
elected from among persons nominated, by one or more

licensed operators within the meaning of the Coal Industry Act
1994 (c. 21), and

(if) partly of persons appointed or nominated, or appointed or
elected from among persons nominated, by one or more
organisations representing persons employed in or about coal
mines.

(5) The second condition is that—

(a) the institute is managed by a committee or board, but

(b) the making of—

(i) an appointment or nomination falling within subsection

(4)(b)(i), or

(ii) an appointment or nomination falling within subsection
(4)(b)(ii),

is not practicable or would not be appropriate, and

(c) at least two thirds of the committee or board consists—

(i) partly of persons employed, or formerly employed, in or about
coal mines, and

(i) partly of persons appointed by the Coal Industry Social Welfare
Organisation or a body or person to which the functions of that
Organisation have been transferred under section 12(3) of the
Miners' Welfare Act 1952 (c. 23).

(6) The third condition is that the premises of the institute are held on trusts to
which section 2 of the Recreational Charities Act 1958 (c. 17) applies.

Interpretation

Section 67 Associate Members and their guests

(1) Any reference in this Act (other than this section) to a guest of a member
of a club includes a reference to—

(a) an associate member of the club, and

(b) a guest of an associate member of the club.

(2) For the purposes of this Act a person is an “associate member” of a club
if—

(a) in accordance with the rules of the club, he is admitted to its premises

as being a member of another club, and

(b) that other club is a recognised club (see section 193).

Section 68 The relevant licensing authority

(1) For the purposes of this Part the “relevant licensing authority” in relation to
any premises is determined in accordance with this section.

(2) Subject to subsection (3), the relevant licensing authority is the authority in
whose area the premises are situated.

(3) Where the premises are situated in the areas of two or more licensing
authorities, the relevant licensing authority is—

Page 57



(a) the licensing authority in whose area the greater or greatest part of the
premises is situated, or

(b) if there is no authority to which paragraph (a) applies, such one of those
authorities as is nominated in accordance with subsection (4).

(4) In a case within subsection (3)(b), an applicant for a club premises
certificate must nominate one of the licensing authorities as the relevant
licensing authority in relation to the application and any certificate granted as
a result of it.

Section 69 Authorised persons, interested parties and responsible
authorities

(1) In this Part in relation to any premises each of the following expressions
has the meaning given to it by this section—

“authorised person”,

“interested party”,

“responsible authority”.

(2) “Authorised person” means any of the following—

(a) an officer of a licensing authority in whose area the premises are
situated who is authorised by that authority for the purposes of this

Act,

(b) an inspector appointed under section 18 of the Fire Precautions Act
1971 (c. 40),

(c) an inspector appointed under section 19 of the Health and Safety at
Work etc. Act 1974 (c. 37),

(d) an officer of a local authority, in whose area the premises are situated,
who is authorised by that authority for the purposes of exercising one

or more of its statutory functions in relation to minimising or

preventing the risk of pollution of the environment or of harm to

human health,

(e) in relation to a vessel, an inspector, or a surveyor of ships, appointed
under section 256 of the Merchant Shipping Act 1995 (c. 21),

(f) a person prescribed for the purposes of this subsection.

(3) “Interested party” means any of the following—

(a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises,

(b) a body representing persons who live in that vicinity,

(c) a person involved in a business in that vicinity,

(d) a body representing persons involved in such businesses.

(4) “Responsible authority” means any of the following—

(a) the chief officer of police for any police area in which the premises are
situated,

(b) the fire authority for any area in which the premises are situated,

(c) the enforcing authority within the meaning given by section 18 of the
Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 (c. 37) for any area in which the
premises are situated,

(d) the local planning authority within the meaning given by the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 (c. 8) for any area in which the premises are
situated,

(e) the local authority by which statutory functions are exercisable in any
area in which the premises are situated in relation to minimising or
preventing the risk of pollution of the environment or of harm to

Page 58



human health,

(f) a body which—

(i) represents those who, in relation to any such area, are
responsible for, or interested in, matters relating to the
protection of children from harm, and

(ii) is recognised by the licensing authority for that area for the
purposes of this section as being competent to advise it on such
matters,

(g9) any licensing authority (other than the relevant licensing authority) in
whose area part of the premises is situated,

(h) in relation to a vessel—

(i) a navigation authority (within the meaning of section 221(1) of
the Water Resources Act 1991 (c. §7)) having functions in
relation to the waters where the vessel is usually moored or
berthed or any waters where it is, or is proposed to be,
navigated at a time when it is used for qualifying club activities,
(ii) the Environment Agency,

(iii) the British Waterways Board, or

(iv) the Secretary of State,

(i) a person prescribed for the purposes of this subsection.

(5) For the purposes of this section, “statutory function” means a function
conferred by or under any enactment.

70 Other definitions relating to clubs

In this Part—

“secretary”, in relation to a club, includes any person (whether or not an
officer of the club) performing the duties of a secretary;

“supply of alcohol to members or guests” means, in the case of any club,—
(a) the supply of alcohol by or on behalf of the club to, or to the

order of, a member of the club, or

(b) the sale by retail of alcohol by or on behalf of the club to a guest

of a member of the club for consumption on the premises where

the sale takes place, and related expressions are to be construed accordingly.

Grant of club premises certificate

Section 71 Application for club premises certificate

(1) A club may apply for a club premises certificate in respect of any premises
which are occupied by, and habitually used for the purposes of, the club.
(2) Any application for a club premises certificate must be made to the
relevant licensing authority.

(3) Subsection (2) is subject to regulations under—

(a) section 91 (form etc. of applications and notices under this Part);

(b) section 92 (fees to accompany applications and notices).

(4) An application under this section must also be accompanied by—

(a) a club operating schedule,

(b) a plan of the premises to which the application relates, in the prescribed
form, and

(c) a copy of the rules of the club.

Page 59



(5) A “club operating schedule” is a document which is in the prescribed form,
and

includes a statement of the following matters—

(a) the qualifying club activities to which the application relates (“the
relevant qualifying club activities”),

(b) the times during which it is proposed that the relevant qualifying club
activities are to take place,

(c) any other times during which it is proposed that the premises are to be
open to members and their guests,

(d) where the relevant qualifying club activities include the supply of
alcohol, whether the supplies are proposed to be for consumption on

the premises or both on and off the premises,

(e) the steps which it is proposed to take to promote the licensing
objectives, and

(f) such other matters as may be prescribed.

(6) The Secretary of State must by regulations—

(a) require an applicant to advertise the application within the prescribed
period—

(i) in the prescribed form, and

(i) in a manner which is prescribed and is likely to bring the

application to the attention of the interested parties likely to be

affected by it;

(b) require an applicant to give notice of the application to each responsible
authority, and such other persons as may be prescribed within the
prescribed period;

(c) prescribe the period during which interested parties and responsible
authorities may make representations to the relevant licensing

authority about the application.

Section 72 Determination of application for club premises certificate
(1) This section applies where the relevant licensing authority—

(a) receives an application for a club premises certificate made in
accordance with section 71, and

(b) is satisfied that the applicant has complied with any requirement
imposed on the applicant under subsection (6) of that section.

(2) Subject to subsection (3), the authority must grant the certificate in
accordance with the application subject only to—

(a) such conditions as are consistent with the club operating schedule
accompanying the application, and

(b) any conditions which must under section 73(2) to (5) or 74 be included
in the certificate.

(3) Where relevant representations are made, the authority must—

(a) hold a hearing to consider them, unless the authority, the applicant and
each person who has made such representations agree that a hearing is
unnecessary, and

(b) having regard to the representations, take such of the steps mentioned
in subsection (4) (if any) as it considers necessary for the promotion of
the licensing objectives.

(4) The steps are—

(a) to grant the certificate subject to—

Page 60



(i) the conditions mentioned in subsection (2)(a) modified to such

extent as the authority considers necessary for the promotion of

the licensing objectives, and

(i) any conditions which must under section 73(2) to (5) or 74 be

included in the certificate;

(b) to exclude from the scope of the certificate any of the qualifying club
activities to which the application relates;

(c) to reject the application.

(5) Subsections (2) and (3)(b) are subject to section 73(1) (certificate may
authorise off-supplies only if it authorises on-supplies).

(6) For the purposes of subsection (4)(a) the conditions mentioned in
subsection

(2)(a) are modified if any of them is altered or omitted or any new condition is
added.

(7) For the purposes of this section, “relevant representations” means
representations which—

(a) are about the likely effect of the grant of the certificate on the promotion
of the licensing objectives, and

(b) meet the requirements of subsection (8).

(8) The requirements are—

(a) that the representations were made by an interested party or

responsible authority within the period prescribed under section

71(6)(c),

(b) that they have not been withdrawn, and

(c) in the case of representations made by an interested party (who is not
also a responsible authority), that they are not, in the opinion of the

relevant licensing authority, frivolous or vexatious.

(9) Where the authority determines for the purposes of subsection (8)(c) that
any representations are frivolous or vexatious, it must notify the person who
made them of the reasons for its determination.

(10) In discharging its duty under subsection (2) or (3)(b) a licensing authority
may grant a club premises certificate subject to different conditions in respect
of—

(a) different parts of the premises concerned;

(b) different qualifying club activities.

Section 73 Certificate authorising supply of alcohol for consumption off
the premises

(1) A club premises certificate may not authorise the supply of alcohol for
consumption off the premises unless it also authorises the supply of alcohol to
a member of the club for consumption on those premises.

(2) A club premises certificate which authorises the supply of alcohol for
consumption off the premises must include the following conditions.

(3) The first condition is that the supply must be made at a time when the
premises are open for the purposes of supplying alcohol, in accordance with
the club premises certificate, to members of the club for consumption on the
premises.

(4) The second condition is that any alcohol supplied for consumption off the
premises must be in a sealed container.

(5) The third condition is that any supply of alcohol for consumption off the

Page 61



premises must be made to a member of the club in person.

Section 74 Mandatory condition: exhibition of films

(1) Where a club premises certificate authorises the exhibition of films, the
certificate must include a condition requiring the admission of children to the
exhibition of any film to be restricted in accordance with this section.

(2) Where the film classification body is specified in the certificate, unless
subsection (3)(b) applies, admission of children must be restricted in
accordance with any recommendation made by that body.

(3) Where—

(a) the film classification body is not specified in the certificate, or

(b) the relevant licensing authority has notified the club which holds the
certificate that this subsection applies to the film in question,

admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any
recommendation made by that licensing authority.

(4) In this section—

“children” means persons aged under 18; and

“film classification body” means the person or persons designated as the
authority under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 (c. 39)
(authority to determine suitability of video works for classification).

Section 75 Prohibited conditions: associate members and their guests
(1) Where the rules of a club provide for the sale by retail of alcohol on any
premises by or on behalf of the club to, or to a guest of, an associate member
of the club, no condition may be attached to a club premises certificate in
respect of the sale by retail of alcohol on those premises by or on behalf of
the club soas to prevent the sale by retail of alcohol to any such associate
member or guest.

(2) Where the rules of a club provide for the provision of any regulated
entertainment on any premises by or on behalf of the club to, or to a guest of,
an associate member of the club, no condition may be attached to a club
premises certificate in respect of the provision of any such regulated
entertainment on those premises by or on behalf of the club so as to prevent
its provision to any such associate member or guest.

Section 76 Prohibited conditions: plays

(1) In relation to a club premises certificate which authorises the performance
of plays, no condition may be attached to the certificate as to the nature of the
plays which may be performed, or the manner of performing plays, under the
certificate.

(2) But subsection (1) does not prevent a licensing authority imposing, in
accordance with section 72(2) or (3)(b), 85(3)(b) or 88(3), any condition which
it considers necessary on the grounds of public safety.

Section 77 Grant or rejection of application for club premises certificate
(1) Where an application is granted under section 72, the relevant licensing
authority must forthwith—

(a) give a notice to that effect to—

(i) the applicant,

(i) any person who made relevant representations in respect of the

Page 62



application, and

(iii) the chief officer of police for the police area (or each police area)

in which the premises are situated, and

(b) issue the club with the club premises certificate and a summary of it.

(2) Where relevant representations were made in respect of the application,
the notice under subsection (1)(a) must specify the authority’s reasons for its
decision as to the steps (if any) to take under section 72(3)(b).

(3) Where an application is rejected under section 72, the relevant licensing
authority must forthwith give a notice to that effect, stating its reasons for that
decision, to—

(a) the applicant,

(b) any person who made relevant representations in respect of the
application, and

(c) the chief officer of police for the police area (or each police area) in
which the premises are situated.

(4) In this section “relevant representations” has the meaning given in section
72(6).

Section 78 Form of certificate and summary

(1) A club premises certificate and the summary of such a certificate must be
in the prescribed form.

(2) Regulations under subsection (1) must, in particular, provide for the
certificate to—

(a) specify the name of the club and the address which is to be its relevant
registered address, as defined in section 184(7);

(b) specify the address of the premises to which the certificate relates;

(c) include a plan of those premises;

(d) specify the qualifying club activities for which the premises may be
used;

(e) specify the conditions subject to which the certificate has effect.

Section 79 Theft, loss, etc. of certificate or summary

(1) Where a club premises certificate or summary is lost, stolen, damaged or
destroyed, the club may apply to the relevant licensing authority for a copy of
the certificate or summary.

(2) Subsection (1) is subject to regulations under section 92(1) (power to
prescribe fee to accompany application).

(3) Where an application is made in accordance with this section, the relevant
licensing authority must issue the club with a copy of the certificate or
summary (certified by the authority to be a true copy) if it is satisfied that—
(a) the certificate or summary has been lost, stolen, damaged or destroyed,
and

(b) where it has been lost or stolen, the club has reported the loss or theft

to the police.

(4) The copy issued under this section must be a copy of the club premises
certificate or summary in the form in which it existed immediately before it
was lost, stolen, damaged or destroyed.

(5) This Act applies in relation to a copy issued under this section as it applies
in relation to an original club premises certificate or summary.

Page 63



Duration of certificate

Section 80 Period of validity of club premises certificate

(1) A club premises certificate has effect until such time as—

(a) it is withdrawn under section 88 or 90, or

(b) it lapses by virtue of section 81(3) (surrender).

(2) But a club premises certificate does not have effect during any period
when it is suspended under section 88.

Section 81 Surrender of club premises certificate

(1) Where a club which holds a club premises certificate decides to surrender
it, the club may give the relevant licensing authority a notice to that effect.

(2) The notice must be accompanied by the club premises certificate or, if that
is not practicable, by a statement of the reasons for the failure to produce the
certificate.

(3) Where a notice is given in accordance with this section, the certificate
lapses on receipt of the notice by the authority.

Duty to notify certain changes

Section 82 Notification of change of name or alteration of rules of club
(1) Where a club—

(a) holds a club premises certificate, or

(b) has made an application for a club premises certificate which has not
been determined by the relevant licensing authority,

the secretary of the club must give the relevant licensing authority notice of
any change in the name, or alteration made to the rules, of the club.

(2) Subsection (1) is subject to regulations under section 92(1) (power to
prescribe fee to accompany application).

(3) A notice under subsection (1) by a club which holds a club premises
certificate must be accompanied by the certificate or, if that is not practicable,
by a statement of the reasons for the failure to produce the certificate.

(4) An authority notified under this section of a change in the name, or
alteration to the rules, of a club must amend the club premises certificate
accordingly.

(5) But nothing in subsection (4) requires or authorises the making of any
amendment to a club premises certificate so as to change the premises to
which the certificate relates (and no amendment made under that subsection
to a club premises certificate has effect so as to change those premises).

(6) If a notice required by this section is not given within the 28 days following
the day on which the change of name or alteration to the rules is made, the
secretary of the club commits an offence.

(7) A person guilty of an offence under subsection (6) is liable on summary
conviction to a fine not exceeding level 2 on the standard scale.

Section 83 Change of relevant registered address of club

(1) A club which holds a club premises certificate may give the relevant
licensing authority notice of any change desired to be made in the address
which is to be the club’s relevant registered address.

Page 64



(2) If a club which holds a club premises certificate ceases to have any
authority to make use of the address which is its relevant registered address,
it must as soon as reasonably practicable give to the relevant licensing
authority notice of the change to be made in the address which is to be the
club’s relevant registered address.

(3) Subsections (1) and (2) are subject to regulations under section 92(1)
(power to prescribe fee to accompany application).

(4) A notice under subsection (1) or (2) must also be accompanied by the club
premises certificate or, if that is not practicable, by a statement of the reasons
for the failure to produce the certificate.

(5) An authority notified under subsection (1) or (2) of a change to be made in
the relevant registered address of a club must amend the club premises
certificate accordingly.

(6) If a club fails, without reasonable excuse, to comply with subsection (2) the
secretary commits an offence.

(7) A person guilty of an offence under subsection (6) is liable on summary
conviction to a fine not exceeding level 2 on the standard scale.

(8) In this section “relevant registered address” has the meaning given in
section 184(7).

Variation of certificates
Section 84 Application to vary club premises certificate
(1) A club which holds a club premises certificate may apply to the relevant
licensing authority for variation of the certificate.
(2) Subsection (1) is subject to regulations under—
(a) section 91 (form etc. of applications);
(b) section 92 (fees to accompany applications).
(3) An application under this section must also be accompanied by the club
premises certificate or, if that is not practicable, by a statement of the reasons
for the failure to provide the certificate.
(4) The duty to make regulations imposed on the Secretary of State by
subsection

(6) of section 71 (advertisement etc. of application) applies in relation to
applications under this section as it applies in relation to applications under
that section.

Section 85 Determination of application under section 84

(1) This section applies where the relevant licensing authority—

(a) receives an application, made in accordance with section 84, to vary a
club premises certificate, and

(b) is satisfied that the applicant has complied with any requirement
imposed by virtue of subsection (4) of that section.

(2) Subject to subsection (3) and section 86(6), the authority must grant the
application.

(3) Where relevant representations are made, the authority must—

(a) hold a hearing to consider them, unless the authority, the applicant and
each person who has made such representations agree that a hearing is
unnecessary, and

(b) having regard to the representations, take such of the steps mentioned
in subsection (4) (if any) as it considers necessary for the promotion of

the licensing objectives.

Page 65



(4) The steps are—

(a) to modify the conditions of the certificate;

(b) to reject the whole or part of the application:;

and for this purpose the conditions of the certificate are modified if any of
them is altered or omitted or any new condition is added.

(5) In this section “relevant representations” means representations which—
(a) are about the likely effect of the grant of the application on the
promotion of the licensing objectives, and

(b) meet the requirements of subsection (6).

(6) The requirements are—

(a) that the representations are made by an interested party or responsible
authority within the period prescribed under section 71(6)(c) by virtue

of section 84(4),

(b) that they have not been withdrawn, and

(c) in the case of representations made by an interested party (who is not
also a responsible authority), that they are not, in the opinion of the

relevant licensing authority, frivolous or vexatious.

(7) Subsections (2) and (3) are subject to sections 73 and 74 (mandatory
conditions relating to supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises and
to exhibition of films).

Section 86 Supp. provision about applications under section 84

(1) Where an application (or any part of an application) is granted under
section 85, the relevant licensing authority must forthwith give a notice to that
effect to—

(a) the applicant,

(b) any person who made relevant representations in respect of the
application, and

(c) the chief officer of police for the police area (or each police area) in

which the premises are situated.

(2) Where relevant representations were made in respect of the application,
the notice under subsection (1) must specify the authority’s reasons for its
decision as to the steps (if any) to take under section 85(3)(b).

(3) The notice under subsection (1) must specify the time when the variation
in question takes effect. That time is the time specified in the application or, if
that time is before the applicant is given the notice, such later time as the
relevant licensing authority specifies in the notice.

(4) Where an application (or any part of an application) is rejected under
section 85, the relevant licensing authority must forthwith give a notice to that
effect stating its reasons for rejecting the application to—

(a) the applicant,

(b) any person who made relevant representations, and

(c) the chief officer of police for the police area (or each police area) in

which the premises are situated.

(5) Where the relevant licensing authority determines for the purposes of
section 85(6)(c) that any representations are frivolous or vexatious, it must
give the person who made them its reasons for that determination.

(6) A club premises certificate may not be varied under section 85 so as to
vary substantially the premises to which it relates.

Page 66



(7) In discharging its duty under subsection (2) or (3)(b) of that section, a
licensing authority may vary a club premises certificate so that it has effect
subject to different conditions in respect of—

(a) different parts of the premises concerned;

(b) different qualifying club activities.

(8) In this section “relevant representations” has the meaning given in section
85(5).

Review of certificates

Section 87 Application for review of club premises certificate

(1) Where a club holds a club premises certificate—

(a) an interested party,

(b) a responsible authority, or

(c) a member of the club,

may apply to the relevant licensing authority for a review of the certificate.
(2) Subsection (1) is subject to regulations under section 91 (form etc. of
applications).

(3) The Secretary of State must by regulations under this section—

(a) require the applicant to give a notice containing details of the
application to the club and each responsible authority within such

period as may be prescribed;

(b) require the authority to advertise the application and invite
representations relating to it to be made to the authority;

(c) prescribe the period during which representations may be made by the
club, any responsible authority and any interested party;

(d) require any notice under paragraph (a) or advertisement under
paragraph (b) to specify that period.

(4) The relevant licensing authority may, at any time, reject any ground for
review specified in an application under this section if it is satisfied—

(a) that the ground is not relevant to one or more of the licensing
objectives, or

(b) in the case of an application made by a person other than a responsible
authority, that—

(i) the ground is frivolous or vexatious, or

(ii) the ground is a repetition.

(5) For this purpose a ground for review is a repetition if—

(a) it is identical or substantially similar to—

(i) a ground for review specified in an earlier application for

review made in respect of the same club premises certificate and
determined under section 88, or

(ii) representations considered by the relevant licensing authority

in accordance with section 72, before it determined the

application for the club premises certificate under that section,

and

(b) a reasonable interval has not elapsed since that earlier application or
that grant.

(6) Where the authority rejects a ground for review under subsection (4)(b), it
must notify the applicant of its decision and, if the ground was rejected
because it was frivolous or vexatious, the authority must notify him of its
reasons for making that decision.

Page 67



(7) The application is to be treated as rejected to the extent that any of the
grounds for review are rejected under subsection (4).

Accordingly, the requirements imposed under subsection (3)(a) and (b) and
by section 88 (so far as not already met) apply only to so much (if any) of the
application as has not been rejected.

Section 88 Determination of application for review

(1) This section applies where—

(a) the relevant licensing authority receives an application made in
accordance with section 87,

(b) the applicant has complied with any requirement imposed by virtue of
subsection (3)(a) or (d) of that section, and

(c) the authority has complied with any requirement imposed on it under
subsection (3)(b) or (d) of that section.

(2) Before determining the application, the authority must hold a hearing to
consider it and any relevant representations.

(3) The authority must, having regard to the application and any relevant
representations, take such of the steps mentioned in subsection (4) (if any) as
it considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

(4) The steps are—

(a) to modify the conditions of the certificate;

(b) to exclude a qualifying club activity from the scope of the certificate;

(c) to suspend the certificate for a period not exceeding three months;

(d) to withdraw the certificate;

and for this purpose the conditions of the certificate are modified if any of
them is altered or omitted or any new condition is added.

(5) Subsection (3) is subject to sections 73 and 74 (mandatory conditions
relating to supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises and to exhibition
of films).

(6) Where the authority takes a step within subsection (4)(a) or (b), it may
provide that the modification or exclusion is to have effect for only such period
(not exceeding three months) as it may specify.

(7) In this section “relevant representations” means representations which—
(a) are relevant to one or more of the licensing objectives, and

(b) meet the requirements of subsection (8).

(8) The requirements are—

(a) that the representations are made by the club, a responsible authority

or an interested party within the period prescribed under section

87(3)(c),

(b) that they have not been withdrawn, and

(c) if they are made by an interested party (who is not also a responsible
authority), that they are not, in the opinion of the relevant licensing

authority, frivolous or vexatious.

(9) Where the relevant licensing authority determines that any representations
are frivolous or vexatious, it must give the person who made them its reasons
for that determination.

(10) Where a licensing authority determines an application for review under
this section it must notify the determination and its reasons for making it to—
(a) the club,

(b) the applicant,

Page 68



(c) any person who made relevant representations, and

(d) the chief officer of police for the police area (or each police area) in
which the premises are situated.

(11) A determination under this section does not have effect—

(a) until the end of the period given for appealing against the decision, or
(b) if the decision is appealed against, until the appeal is disposed of.

Section 89 Supplementary provision about review

(1) This section applies where a local authority is both—

(a) the relevant licensing authority, and

(b) a responsible authority, in respect of any premises.

(2) The authority may, in its capacity as responsible authority, apply under
section 87 for a review of any club premises certificate in respect of the
premises.

(3) The authority may in its capacity as licensing authority determine that
application.

Withdrawal of certificates

Section 90 Club ceasing to be a qualifying club

(1) Where—

(a) a club holds a club premises certificate, and

(b) it appears to the relevant licensing authority that the club does not

satisfy the conditions for being a qualifying club in relation to a qualifying club
activity to which the certificate relates (see section 61), the authority must give
a notice to the club withdrawing the certificate, so far as relating to that
activity.

(2) Where the only reason that the club does not satisfy the conditions for
being a qualifying club in relation to the activity in question is that the club has
fewer than the required number of members, the notice withdrawing the
certificate must state that the withdrawal—

(a) does not take effect until immediately after the end of the period of

three months following the date of the notice, and

(b) will not take effect if, at the end of that period, the club again has at least
the required number of members.

(3) The references in subsection (2) to the required number of members are
references to the minimum number of members required by condition 4 in
section 62(5) (25 at the passing of this Act).

(4) Nothing in subsection (2) prevents the giving of a further notice of
withdrawal under this section at any time.

(5) Where a justice of the peace is satisfied, on information on oath, that there
are reasonable grounds for believing—

(a) that a club which holds a club premises certificate does not satisfy the
conditions for being a qualifying club in relation to a qualifying club

activity to which the certificate relates, and

(b) that evidence of that fact is to be obtained at the premises to which the
certificate relates, he may issue a warrant authorising a constable to enter the
premises, if necessary by force, at any time within one month from the time of
the issue of the warrant, and search them.

(6) A person who enters premises under the authority of a warrant under

Page 69



subsection (5) may seize and remove any documents relating to the business
of the club in question.

General provision

Section 91 Form etc. of applications and notices under Part 4

In relation to any application or notice under this Part, regulations may
prescribe—

(a) its form;

(b) the manner in which it is to be made or given;

(c) information and documents that must accompany it.

Section 92 Fees

(1) Regulations may—

(a) require applications under any provision of this Part (other than section
87) to be accompanied by a fee, and

(b) prescribe the amount of the fee.

(2) Regulations may also require the payment of an annual fee to the relevant
licensing authority by or on behalf of a club which holds a club premises
certificate.

(3) Regulations under subsection (2) may include provision—

(a) imposing liability for the making of the payment on the secretary or
such other officers or members of the club as may be prescribed,

(b) prescribing the amount of any such fee, and

(c) prescribing the time at which any such fee is due.

(4) Any fee which is owed to a licensing authority under subsection (2) may be
recovered as a debt due to the authority from any person liable to make the
payment by virtue of subsection (3)(a).

Production of certificate, rights of entry, etc.

Section 93 Licensing authority’s duty to update club premises certificate
(1) Where—

(a) the relevant licensing authority, in relation to a club premises

certificate, makes a determination or receives a notice under this Part,

or

(b) an appeal against a decision under this Part is disposed of,

the relevant licensing authority must make the appropriate amendments (if
any) to the certificate and, if necessary, issue a new summary of the
certificate.

(2) Where a licensing authority is not in possession of the club premises
certificate, it may, for the purpose of discharging its obligations under
subsection (1), require the secretary of the club to produce the certificate to
the authority within 14 days from the date on which the club is notified of the
requirement.

(3) A person commits an offence if he fails, without reasonable excuse, to
comply with a requirement under subsection (2).

(4) A person guilty of an offence under subsection (3) is liable on summary
conviction to a fine not exceeding level 2 on the standard scale.

Page 70



Section 94 Duty to keep and produce certificate

(1) This section applies whenever premises in respect of which a club
premises certificate has effect are being used for one or more qualifying club
activities authorised by the certificate.

(2) The secretary of the club must secure that the certificate, or a certified
copy of it, is kept at the premises in the custody or under the control of a
person (the “nominated person”) who—

(a) falls within subsection (3),

(b) has been nominated for the purpose by the secretary in writing, and

(c) has been identified to the relevant licensing authority in a notice given

by the secretary.

(3) The persons who fall within this subsection are—

(a) the secretary of the club,

(b) any member of the club,

(c) any person who works at the premises for the purposes of the club.

(4) The nominated person must secure that—

(a) the summary of the certificate or a certified copy of that summary, and

(b) a notice specifying the position which he holds at the premises,

are prominently displayed at the premises.

(5) The secretary commits an offence if he fails, without reasonable excuse, to
comply with subsection (2).

(6) The nominated person commits an offence if he fails, without reasonable
excuse, to comply with subsection (4).

(7) A constable or an authorised person may require the nominated person to
produce the club premises certificate (or certified copy) for examination.

(8) An authorised person exercising the power conferred by subsection (7)
must, if so requested, produce evidence of his authority to exercise the power.
(9) A person commits an offence if he fails, without reasonable excuse, to
produce a club premises certificate or certified copy of a club premises
certificate in accordance with a requirement under subsection (7).

(10) A person guilty of an offence under this section is liable on summary
conviction to a fine not exceeding level 2 on the standard scale.

(11) In subsection (4) the reference to the summary of the certificate is a
reference to the summary issued under section 77 or, where one or more
summaries have subsequently been issued under section 93, the most recent
summary to be so issued.

(12) Section 95 makes provision about certified copies of club premises
certificates and of summaries of club premises certificates for the purposes of
this section.

Section 95 Provision supplementary to section 94

(1) Any reference in section 94 to a certified copy of a document is a
reference to a copy of the document which is certified to be a true copy by—
(a) the relevant licensing authority,

(b) a solicitor or notary, or

(c) a person of a prescribed description.

(2) Any certified copy produced in accordance with a requirement under
subsection 94(7) must be a copy of the document in the form in which it exists
at the time.

Page 71



(3) A document which purports to be a certified copy of a document is to be
taken to be such a copy, and to comply with the requirements of subsection
(2), unless the contrary is shown.

Section 96 Inspection of premises before grant of certificate etc.

(1) Subsection (2) applies where—

(a) a club applies for a club premises certificate in respect of any premises,
(b) a club applies under section 84 for the variation of a club premises
certificate held by it, or

(c) an application is made under section 87 for review of a club premises
certificate.

(2) On production of his authority—

(a) an authorised person, or

(b) a constable authorised by the chief officer of police,

may enter and inspect the premises.

(3) Any entry and inspection under this section must take place at a
reasonable time on a day—

(a) which is not more than 14 days after the making of the application in
question, and

(b) which is specified in the notice required by subsection (4).

(4) Before an authorised person or constable enters and inspects any
premises under this section, at least 48 hours’ notice must be given to the
club.

(5) Any person obstructing an authorised person in the exercise of the power
conferred by this section commits an offence.

(6) A person guilty of an offence under subsection (5) is liable on summary
conviction to a fine not exceeding level 2 on the standard scale.

(7) The relevant licensing authority may, on the application of a responsible
authority, extend by not more than 7 days the time allowed for carrying out an
entry and inspection under this section.

(8) The relevant licensing authority may allow such an extension of time only if
it appears to the authority that—

(a) reasonable steps had been taken for an authorised person or constable
authorised by the applicant to inspect the premises in good time, but

(b) it was not possible for the inspection to take place within the time
allowed.

Section 97 Other powers of entry and search

(1) Where a club premises certificate has effect in respect of any premises, a
constable may enter and search the premises if he has reasonable cause to
believe—

(a) that an offence under section 4(3)(a), (b) or (c) of the Misuse of Drugs
Act 1971 (c. 38) (supplying or offering to supply, or being concerned in
supplying or making an offer to supply, a controlled drug) has been, is
being, or is about to be, committed there, or

(b) that there is likely to be a breach of the peace there.

(2) A constable exercising any power conferred by this section may, if
necessary, use reasonable force.

Page 72



6. Club premises certificates

6.1

Exbrack Erm Home OfEice Amended Gundance Teeye Léno(ef
Seckion (82
tho L(cenruzy__/l-o{' 2003

This Chapter covers the administration of the processes for issuing, varying, and reviewing club premises
certificates and other associated procedures.

GENERAL

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

Clubs are organisations where members have joined together for particular social, sporting or
political purposes. They may then combine to buy alcohol in bulk as members of the organisation to

supply in the club.

Technically the club only sells alcohol by retail at such premises to guests. Where members purchase
alcohol, there is no sale (as the member owns part of the alcohol stock) and the money passing actoss
the bar is merely a mechanism to preserve equity between members where one may consume more
than another.

Only ‘qualifying’ clubs may hold club premises certificates. In order to be a qualifying club, a club must
have at least 25 members and meet the conditions set out below. The grant of a club premises certificate
means that a qualifying club is entitled to certain benefits. These include:

* the authority to supply alcohol to members and sell it to guests on the premises to which the certificate
relates without the need for any member or employee to hold a personal licence;

* the authority to provide late night refreshment to members of the club without requiring additional
authorisation;

* more limited rights of entry for the police and authotised persons because the premises are considered
private and not generally open to the public;

* exemption from police powers of instant closure on grounds of disorder and noise nuisance (except
when being used under the authority of a temporary event notice or premises licence) because they
operate under their codes of discipline and rules; and

* exemption from orders of the magistrates’ court for the closure of all licensed premises in an area when
disorder is happening or expected.

Qualifying clubs should not be confused with proprietary clubs, which are clubs run commercially
by individuals, partnerships or businesses for profit. These require a premises licence and are not
qualifying clubs.

A qualifying club will be permitted under the terms of a club premises certificate to sell and supply alcohol
to its members and their guests only. Instant membership is not permitted and members must wait at

least two days between their application and their admission to the club. A qualifying club may choose to
apply for a premises licence if it decides that it wishes to offer its facilities commercially for use by the
general public, including the sale of alcohol to them. However, an individual on behalf of a club may give
temporary event notices. See Chapter 7.

The 2003 Act does not prevent visitors to a qualifying club being supplied with alcohol as long as they
are ‘guests’ of any member of the club or the club collectively, and nothing in the 2003 Act prevents
the admission of such people as guests without prior notice. The 2003 Act does not define “guest” and
whether or not somebody is a genuine guest would in all cases be a question of fact.

Page 73 33



6.8 There is no mandatory requirement under the 2003 Act for guests to be signed in by a member of the
club. However, a point may be reached where a club is providing commercial setvices to the general public
in a way that is contrary to its qualifying club status. It is at this point that the club would no longer be
conducted in “good faith” and would no longer meet “general condition 3” for qualifying clubs in section
62 of the 2003 Act. Under the 2003 Act, the licensing authority must decide when a club has ceased to
operate in “good faith” and give the club a notice withdrawing the club premises certificate. The club is
entitled to appeal against such a decision to a magistrates’ court. Unless the appeal is successful, the club
would need to apply for a premises licence to authorise licensable activities taking place there.

QUALIFYING CONDITIONS

6.9  Section 62 of the 2003 Act sets out five general conditions which a relevant club must meet to be a qualifying
club. Section 63 also sets out specified matters for licensing authorities to enable them to determine whether a
club is established and conducted in good faith — the third qualifying condition. Section 64 sets out additional
conditions which only need to be met by clubs intending to supply alcohol to members and guests. Section 90 of
the 2003 Act gives powers to the licensing authority to issue a notice to a club withdrawing its certificate where it
appears that it has ceased to meet the qualifying conditions. There is a right of appeal against such a decision.

ASSOCIATE MEMBERS AND GUESTS

6.10 As well as their own members and guests, qualifying clubs are also able to admit associate members and
their guests (i.e. members and guests from another ‘recognised club’ as defined by section 193 of the 2003
Act) to the club premises when qualifying club activities are being carried on without compromising the
use of their club premises certificate.

APPLICATIONS FOR THE GRANT OR VARIATION OF CLUB PREMISES CERTIFICATES

6.11 The arrangements for applying for or seeking to vary club premises certificates are extremely similar to
those for a premises licence. Clubs may also use the minor variation process to make small changes to their
certificates as long as these could have no adverse impact on the licensing objectives. Licensing authorities
should refer to Chapter 8 of this Guidance on the handling of such applications.

6.12 In addition to a plan of the premises and a club operating schedule, clubs must also include the rules of
the club with their application (as well as making a declaration to the licensing authority in accordance with
regulations made under the 2003 Act). On notifying any alteration to these rules to the licensing authority,
the club is required to pay a fee set down in regulations. Licensing authorities cannot require any changes
to the rules to be made as a condition of receiving a certificate unless relevant representations have been
made. However, if a licensing authority is satisfied that the rules of a club indicate that it does not meet
the qualifying conditions in the 2003 Act, a club premises certificate should not be granted.

STEPS NEEDED TO PROMOTE THE LICENSING OBJECTIVES
6.13 Club operating schedules prepared by clubs, must include the steps the club intends to take to promote
the licensing objectives. These will be translated into conditions included in the certificate, unless

the conditions have been modified by the licensing authority following consideration of relevant
representations. Guidance on these conditions is given in Chapter 10 of this Guidance.

34 Amended guldance Issued under Section 182 ofaag:gnsZéAct 2003



Extract from the Gambling Act 2005

(Refer to the Act for the full context and detail)

Section37 Use of premises

(1)A person commits an offence if he uses premises, or causes or permits premises to be used, to—
(a)operate a casino,

(b)provide facilities for the playing of bingo,

(c)make a gaming machine available for use,

(d)provide other facilities for gaming, or

(e)provide facilities for betting (whether by making or accepting bets, by acting as a betting intermediary

or by providing other facilities for the making or accepting of bets).

(2)Subsection (1) does not apply in relation to the use of premises by a person if the use is authorised

by a premises licence held by him.

(3)Subsection (1) does not apply in relation to the use of premises by a person if he acts in the course of

a business carried on by another person who holds a premises licence authorising the use.

(4)Subsection (1) does not apply in relation to the use of a track by a person for accepting bets if the use

is authorised by a premises licence (whether or not held by him).

(5)Subsection (1) does not apply in relation to the use of a casino for the provision of facilities for bingo

or betting in accordance with an authorisation under section 174(3).

(6)Subsection (1) does not apply in relation to the use of premises to provide facilities which are to be

used only by persons who—

(a)are acting in the course of a business, or

(b)are not on the premises.

(7)Other exceptions to subsection (1) are provided in—
(a)sections 39 and 40,

(b)section 214 (temporary use notice),

(c)sections 247, 248 and 249 (gaming machines),

(d)sections 269, 271 and 273 (clubs and miners' welfare institutes),
(e)sections 279, 282 and 283 (premises with alcohol licence),

(f)section 287 (travelling fairs),

Page 75



(9)sections 289 to 292 (prize gaming),

(h)section 296 (private gaming and betting), and

(i)section 298 (non-commercial gaming).

(8)A person guilty of an offence under this section shall be liable on summary conviction to—
(a)imprisonment for a term not exceeding 51 weeks,

(b)a fine not exceeding level 5 on the standard scale, or

(c)both.

(9)In the application of subsection (8) to Scotland the reference to 51 weeks shall have effect as a

reference to six months.

Section 242 Making machine available for use

(1)A person commits an offence if he makes a gaming machine available for use by another unless—
(a)he makes the machine available for use in accordance with an operating licence, or
(b)an exception in section 247, 248, 249, 271, 273, 282, 283 or 287 applies.

(2)A person commits an offence if he makes a gaming machine available for use in contravention of

regulations under section 240.

Section 266 Members' Club

(1)In this Act members' club means a ciub—

(a)which is established and conducted wholly or mainly for purposes other than the provision of facilities

for gaming (subject to subsection (2)),

(b)which is established and conducted for the benefit of its members (and which is not otherwise

established or conducted as a commercial enterprise),

(c)which is not established with the purpose of functioning only for a limited period of time, and
(d)which has at least 25 individual members.

(2)A club is a members' club for the purposes of this Act despite subsection (1)(a) if—

(a)it is established or conducted wholly or mainly for the purpose of the provision of facilities for gaming

of a prescribed kind, and

(b)facilities are not provided for any other kind of gaming in the course of the club's activities.

Page 76



Section 269 Exempt gaming
(1)Sections 33 and 37 shall not apply to the provision of facilities for equal chance gaming which

satisfies the conditions of this section by—

(a)a members' club,

(b)a commercial club,

(c)a club that would be a members' club but for section 266(1)(a),
(d)a club that would be a commercial club but for section 267(1)(a), or
(e)a miners' welfare institute.

(2)The first condition of gaming for the purposes of subsection (1) is that the arrangements for the

gaming satisfy the prescribed requirements (if any) in relation to—
(a)amounts that may be staked, or
(b)the amount or value of a prize.

(3)The second condition of gaming for the purposes of subsection (1) is that no amount is deducted or

levied from sums staked or won.

(4)The third condition of gaming for the purposes of subsection (1) is that any participation fee does not

exceed such maximum as may be prescribed.

(5)The fourth condition of gaming for the purposes of subsection (1) is that a game played on one set of

premises is not linked with a game played on another set of premises.

(6)The fifth condition of gaming for the purposes of subsection (1), which does not apply to a club of a

kind mentioned in subsection (1)(b) or (d), is that each person who participates—

(a)is a member of the club or institute who applied for membership, was nominated for membership or

became a member, at least 48 hours before he participates, or

(b)is a guest of a member of the club or institute who would be entitled to participate by virtue of

paragraph (a).

Section 270 Section 269: supplementary
(1)In section 269(1) a reference to the provision of facilities by a club or institute includes a reference to

any provision of facilities made—
(a)on behalf of or by arrangement with the club or institute, and
(b)in the course of its activities.

(2)Regulations prescribing requirements in relation to stakes or prizes for the purposes of section 269(2)

may, in particular—

Page 77



(a)ymake different provision for different classes of club or institute;
(b)make different provision for different classes or descriptions of game.

(3)In section 269(3) the reference to a deduction or levy in respect of gaming provided by, on behalf of

or by arrangement with a club or institute is to a deduction or levy made by or on behalf of—

(a)the club or institute, or

(b)a person providing facilities for gaming on behalf of, or by arrangement with, the club or institute.
(4)Regulations prescribing a maximum charge for the purposes of section 269(4) may, in particular—
(a)ymake different provision for different classes of club or institute;

(b)make provision depending on whether a club or institute holds a club gaming permit;

(c)make different provision for different classes or descriptions of game;

(d)make different provision for different classes or descriptions of fee.

(5)For the purposes of section 269(5) two games are linked if—

(a)the result of one game is or may be wholly or partly determined by reference to the result of the other

game, or

(b)the amount of winnings available in one game is or may be wholly or partly determined by reference

to the amount of participation in the other game;

and if a single game is played partly on one set of premises and partly on another it shall be treated as

two linked games.

(6)For the purposes of section 269(6) a person shall not be treated as the guest of a member if the

member extends an invitation—
(a)having had no previous acquaintance with the person, and

(b)for the purpose only of enabling the person to take advantage of facilities for gaming provided by or

for the club or institute.

Section 273  Club Machine Permit
(1)Sections 37 and 242 shall not apply to making a gaming machine available for use in accordance

with a club machine permit.

(2)A club machine permit is a permit issued by a licensing authority authorising up to three gaming

machines, each of which must be of Category B, C or D, to be made available for use—

(a)on premises on which a members' club, a commercial club or a miners' welfare institute operates,

and

Page 78



(b)in the course of the activities of the club or institute.

(3)A club machine permit held by a members' club or a miners' welfare institute shall, by virtue of this
subsection, be subject to the condition that each person to whom a machine is made available for use in

reliance on the permit—

(a)is a member of the club or institute who applied for membership, was nominated for membership or

became a member, at least 48 hours before he uses the machine, or

(b)is a guest of a member of the club or institute who would be entitled to use the machine by virtue of

paragraph (a).
(4)A club machine permit shall, by virtue of this subsection, be subject to the conditions—

(a)that no child or young person use a Category B or C gaming machine on the club's or institute's

premises, and

(b)that the holder comply with any relevant provision of a code of practice under section 24 about the

location and operation of a gaming machine.

(5)For the purposes of subsection (3)(b) a person shall not be treated as the guest of a member if the

member extends an invitation—
(a)having had no previous acquaintance with the person, and

(b)for the purpose only of enabling the person to take advantage of facilities for gaming.

Page 79



Extract (rom &imﬁ//fy Commssiors fwm b Licancing Ablor,

Part 25: Club gaming permits and club machine permits

25.1 Schedule 12 of the Act sets out the application process and regulatory regime for club
gaming permits and club machine permits. Scottish Ministers may, with the consent of the
Secretary of State, make separate regulations in relation to club gaming or club machine
permits in place of Schedule 12, if the applicant or the holder of the permit is the holder of a
certificate of registration under section 105 of the Licensing (Scotland) Act 1976. Scottish
Ministers have made regulations in this regard®. In exercising a function under Schedule
12, the licensing authority must have regard to this Guidance and, subject to the Guidance,

the licensing objectives.

25.2 This part of the Guidance covers the following types of premises:
+ Members’ clubs
+ Commercial clubs
+ Miners’ welfare institutes

A club gaming permit or club machine permit may not be issued in respect of a vessel or
vehicle.

25.3 Under section 271 of the Act, a licensing authority may grant members’ clubs and miners’
welfare institutes (but not commercial clubs) club gaming permits which authorise the
establishments to provide gaming machines (as well as equal chance gaming and games
of chance, as prescribed in regulations®). The club gaming permit has certain conditions,
including that, in respect of gaming machines, no child or young person uses a category B
or C machine on the premises and that the holder complies with any relevant provision of a
code of practice about the location and operation of gaming machines (available on the
Commission’s website®®).

25.4 If a club does not wish to have the full range of facilities permitted by a club gaming permit
or if they are a commercial club not permitted to provide non-machine gaming (other than
exempt gaming under section 269 of the Act), they may apply to the licensing authority for
a club machine permit under section 273 of the Act. This authorises the holder to have up
to three gaming machines of categories B4, C or D (that is, three machines in total).
Members' clubs and miners’ welfare institutes (but not commercial clubs) are entitled to site
category B3A gaming machines offering lottery games in their clubs. However, the limit of
three machines in total remains.

Members’ clubs

25.5 Members’ clubs must have at least 25 members and be established and conducted ‘wholly
or mainly’ for purposes other than gaming, unless the gaming is permitted by separate
regulations. The Secretary of State has made such regulations and these cover bridge and
whist clubs®. A members’ club must be permanent in nature and established and
conducted for the benefit of its members and not as a commercial enterprise. Examples
include working men’s clubs, branches of the Royal British Legion and clubs with political
affiliations. They may apply for club gaming or club machine permits.

Commercial clubs

25.6 Commercial clubs have the same characteristics as members’ clubs, except that the key
difference is that they are established with a view to making a profit. Examples of
commercial clubs are snooker clubs, clubs established for personal profit and most clubs

5 51 No 504/2007: The Club Gaming and Club Machine Permits (Scotland) Regulations 2007

54 SI No 1945: The Gambling Act 2005 (Club Gaming Permits) (Authorised Gaming) Regulations 2007
% Code of Practice on Machine Permits available from www.gamblingecommission.qov.uk

% S| No. 1942: The Gambling Act 2005 (Gaming in Crsgaeéulﬁﬁs 2007

25-1



established as private companies. In case of doubt, it is suggested thatlegal advice is
sought. Commercial clubs may only apply for club machine permits.

Miners’ welfare institutes

25.7 Miners’ welfare institutes are associations established for recreational or social purposes.
They are managed by representatives of miners or use premises regulated by a charitable
trust which has received funds from one of a number of mining organisations. Miners'
welfare institutes may also apply for club gaming and club machine permits.

Bingo in clubs

25.8 Clubs and miners' welfare institutes are able to provide facilities for playing bingo under
section 275 of the Act, or in accordance with a permit under section 271, provided that the
restrictions in section 275 are complied with. These include that in any seven day period
the aggregate stakes or prizes for bingo must not exceed £2,000. If that limit is breached
the club must hold a bingo operator’s licence and the relevant operating, personal and
premises licences must be sought (see part 18 of the Guidance). To help clubs and
institutes to comply with the full range of statutory requirements for gaming, the
Commission has issued a statutory code of practice. The Code of Practice for equal
chance gaming in clubs and premises with an alcohol licence is available from the
Commission’s website®.

Betting in clubs

25.9 Commercial betting, regardless of the level of stakes, is not allowed in clubs. Those who
facilitate such betting in clubs — whether designated premises supervisors or club officials —
are providing illegal facilities for gambling and are breaking the law. Even where
designated premises supervisors or club officials accept bets on behalf of licensed
bookmakers, or just facilitate betting through their own telephone accounts, they are acting
as betting intermediaries and could be prosecuted.

25.10 Licensed bookmakers with a full or ancillary remote licence may accept telephone bets
from a customer watching an event in a club, as long as that customer has an individual
account with them. It is illegal for bookmakers to sit in the club taking bets themselves.
Similarly, it is also illegal for operators to put their agent in clubs, for example, in a working
men’s club on a Saturday, to take bets.

Club gaming permits

25.11 Under section 271 of the Act, the licensing authority may grant members’ clubs and miners’
welfare institutes (but not commercial clubs) club gaming permits which authorise the
establishments to provide gaming machines, equal chance gaming (without having to abide
by the stake and prize limits which would apply to exempt gaming in the absence of a
permit) and games of chance as prescribed in regulations, namely pontoon and chemin de
fer. This is in addition to the exempt gaming authorisation under section 269 of the Act.

25.12 Club gaming permits allow the provision of no more than three gaming machines. These
may be from categories B3A, B4, C or D but only one B3A machine can be sited as part of
this entitlement. See part 16 of this Guidance for information on machine categories.

25.13 Where a club has gaming machines they are required to comply with the Gaming Machine
Permits Code of Practice, which has been issued by the Commission on the location and
operatiosrg of machines. Information about this code can be found on the Commission’s
website™.

¥ Code of Practice for Equal Chance Gaming in Clubs and Premises with an Alcohol Licence, available from
www.gamblingcommisslon.gov.uk
® Code of Practice on Gaming Machine Permits, avallable from | mmission.gov.uk

5-2



25.14 The gaming which a club gaming permit allows is subject to conditions:

25.15

25.16

2517

25.18

(a) in respect of equal chance gaming:

 the club must not deduct money from sums staked or won

« the participation fee must not exceed the amount prescribed in regulations

« the game takes place on the premises and must not be linked with a game on
another set of premises.

Two games are linked if:

« the result of one game is, or may be, wholly or partly determined by reference to
the result of the other game, or

 the amount of winnings available in one game is wholly or partly determined by
reference to the amount of participation in the other game, and a game which is
split so that part is played on one site and another part is played elsewhere is
treated as two linked games

« only club members and their genuine guests participate.

(b) in respect of other games of chance:
+ the games must be pontoon and chemin de fer only
 no participation fee may be charged otherwise than in accordance with the
regulations
« no amount may be deducted from sums staked or won otherwise than in
accordance with the regulations.

There are limits on stakes and prizes for poker played in those clubs and institutes that do
not hold a club gaming permit issued by their local licensing authority. The introduction of
these limits reflects significant recent growth in the popularity of poker, and the need to
address the particular risks associated with such gaming. The regulations®impose a
stakes limit of £10 per person per game, within a premises limit of up to £250 in stakes per
day and £1,000 per week. The maximum fees that clubs may charge their members for
participating in gaming has been set at £1 per day (or £3 if they hold a club gaming permit).
Clubs and institutes holding a club gaming permit are also able to provide facilities for
specified banker’s games.

To help clubs and institutes to comply with the full range of statutory requirements for
gaming, the Commission has issued a statutory code of practice on equal chance gaming
in consultation with interested parties. The Code of Practice for equal chance gaming in
clubs and premises with an alcohol licence is available from the Commission’s website®.
The provisions of the code (which also applies to alcohol-licensed premises) include:

» ensuring that young people and children are protected by excluding them from
gaming (even if they are permitted on the premises)

« ensuring that gaming is fair and open by requiring close supervision of the games,
record keeping (as appropriate), the need for standard rules and the display of
stakes and prizes limits and the rules during play.

A 48 hour rule applies in respect of all three types of gaming, so that the games may only
be played by people who have been members of the club for at least 48 hours, or have
applied or been nominated for membership or are genuine guests of a member.

Protection of children and young persons

The gambling provided under the authority of a club gaming permit must also meet the
following conditions:
(a) in respect of gaming machines:
« no child or young person may use a category B or C machine on the premises

% SI No. 1944: The Gambling Act 2005 (Exempt Gaming In Clubs) Regulations 2007
 Code of Practice for Equal Chance Gaming in Clubs and Premises with an Alcohol Licence, avallable from

www.gambli mmission.gov.uk

Page 8225_3



* that the holder must comply with any relevant provision of a code of practice
about the location and operation of gaming machines.

(b) the public, children and young persons must be excluded from any area of the
premises where the gaming is taking place.

Club machine permits

25.19

25.20

25.21

25.22

If a members’ club or a miners’ welfare institute does not wish to have the full range of
facilities permitted by a club gaming permit, they may apply to the licensing authority for a
club machine permit under section 273 of the Act. This authorises the holder to have up to
three gaming machines of categories B3A, B4, C and D. Commercial clubs are not
permitted to provide non-machine gaming (other than exempt gaming under section 269 of
the Act) so they should apply for a club machine permit, however, they will not be able to
site category B3A gaming machines offering lottery games in their club.

There are a number of premises, such as work premises which operate membership-based
social clubs, that are not licensed to sell alcohol but are allowed to apply for a club machine
permit. Before granting the permit the licensing authority will need to satisfy itself that the
premises meet the requirements of a members’ club and may grant the permit if the
majority of members are over 18 years of age. The permit will allow up to three machines
of category B3A, B4, C or D. If under-18s use the club, for example they are apprentices,
they may play the category D, but not the B4 or C, machines.

Holders of licensed premises club machine permits are required to comply with the Gaming
Machine Permits Code of Practice, which has been issued by the Commission on the
location and operation of machines. Information about this code can be found on the

Commission's website®".
Protection of children and young persons

Section 273 sets out the conditions that will apply to the club machine permit, including that
in respect of gaming machines no child or young person uses a category B or C machine
on the premises and that the holder complies with any relevant provision of a code of
practice about the location and operation of gaming machines. It should be noted that clubs
do not have to have permanent premises or an alcohol licence.

Applications for club gaming permits and club machine permits

25.23

25.24

The Secretary of State has made regulations in relation to applications for these permits,
and Scottish Ministers have made separate regulations setting out the fees and
applications requirements that apply in Scotland.

Applications must be made to the licensing authority in whose area the premises are
located, and must be accompanied by the fee and documents prescribed in regulations®.
Within a time prescribed in the regulations, the applicant must also copy the application to
the Commission and to the chief officer of police. The Commission and the police may
object to the permit being granted. The period within which such objections must be lodged
and the grounds on which they may be made are set out in regulations. If any objections
are made, the authority must hold a hearing (unless consent has been given to dispense
with it), otherwise no hearing is necessary.

& Code of Practice on Gaming Machine Permilts, available from www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk

2 SI No. 1834: The Gambling Act 2005 (Club Gaming and Club Machine Permits) Regulations 2007, and

S| No. 2689: The Gambling Act 2005 (Club Gaming and Club Machine Permits)(Amendments) Regulations 2007
SSI No. 504: The Club Gaming and Club Machine Permits (Scotland) Regulations 2007

Page, 83



+ - 25.25 A licensing authority may grant or refuse a permit, but it may not attach any conditions to a
permit. The authority has to inform the applicant, the Commission and the police of the
outcome of the application and of any objections made.

25.26 Licensing authorities may only refuse an application on the grounds that:

(a) the applicant does not fulfil the requirements for a members’ or commercial club or
miners’ welfare institute and therefore is not entitled to receive the type of permit for
which it has applied

(b) the applicant's premises are used wholly or mainly by children and/or young
persons

(c) an offence under the Act or a breach of a permit has been committed by the
applicant while providing gaming facilities

(d) a permit held by the applicant has been cancelled in the previous ten years

(e) an objection has been lodged by the Commission or the police.

25.27 |If the authority is satisfied that (a) or (b) is the case, it must refuse the application.
Licensing authorities shall have regard to relevant guidance issued by the Commission and
(subject to that guidance), the licensing objectives.

25.28 In cases where an objection has been lodged by the Commission or the police, the
licensing authority is obliged to determine whether the objection is valid.

Fast-track procedure

25.29 There is a fast-track procedure for clubs in England and Wales which hold a club premises
certificate under section 72 of the Licensing Act 2003. Under the fast-track procedure there
is no opportunity for objections to be made by the Commission or the police, and the
grounds upon which an authority can refuse a permit are reduced. This is because the club
or institute will already have been through a licensing process in relation to its club
premises certificate under the 2003 Act, and it is therefore unnecessary to impose the full
requirements of Schedule 12.

25.30 The grounds on which an application under this process may be refused are that:
(a) the club is established primarily for gaming, other than gaming prescribed by
regulations under section 266 of the Act
(b) in addition to the prescribed gaming, the applicant provides facilities for other
gaming
(c) a club gaming permit or club machine permit issued to the applicant in the last ten
years has been cancelled.

Maintenance

25.31 The permit will have effect for ten years, unless it ceases to have effect because it is
surrendered or lapses or is renewed.

25.32 The holder of the permit must pay to the licensing authority the first annual fee, and an
annual fee before each anniversary of the issue of the permit, in accordance with
regulations.

25.34 Permits may be amended to meet changing circumstances. Licensing authorities may only
refuse a variation if on consideration of a completely new application they would refuse the
permit.

25.35 The permit, which is to be kept on the premises it relates to, must be in a form specified by
the regulations and, if obtained through the fast-track procedure, must identify the
appropriate club premises certificate it relates to. It is an offence not to produce the permit
when requested to do so by a constable or an enforcement officer.

Page 84, 5



25.36 If a permit is lost, stolen or damaged, the holder may apply for a replacement, subject to
payment of a prescribed fee. The licensing authority must grant the application if it is
satisfied that the permit has been lost, stolen or damaged and, where the permit is lost or
stolen, a report has been made to the police. It should issue a copy and certify it as a true

copy.

25.37 A permit will lapse if the holder of the permit stops being a club or miners’ welfare institute,
or if it no longer qualifies under the fast-track system for a permit. In addition, a permit will
cease to have effect upon being surrendered to the authority. A notice to surrender must
be accompanied by the permit or a statement explaining why it cannot be produced. The
authority must inform the police and the Commission when a permit has been surrendered

or lapsed.

Cancellation and forfeiture

25.38 The licensing authority may cancel the permit if:
* the premises are used wholly by children and/or young persons
* an offence or breach of a permit condition has been committed in the course of

gaming activities by the permit holder.

Reference here to ‘a permit condition’ means a condition in the Act or in regulations that
the permit is operating under.

25.39 Before cancelling a permit, the licensing authority must give the permit holder at least 21
days’ notice of the intention to cancel and consider any representations that they may
make. The authority must hold a hearing if the permit holder so requests and must comply
with any other procedural requirements set out in regulations. If there is no appeal, the
cancellation will take effect 21 days after notice of the intention to cancel was given. The
authority must notify the permit holder, the Commission and the police that the permit has
been cancelled and the reasons for the cancellation.

Renewal
25.40 |n accordance with paragraph 24 of Schedule 12 of the Act, an application for renewal of a

permit must be made during the period beginning three months before the licence expires
and ending six weeks before it expires. The procedure for renewal is the same as for an

application.

25.41 The duration of the permit will not be curtailed while a renewal application is pending,
including an appeal against a decision not to renew.

Appeals

25.42 The rights of appeal in relation to permits are discussed in part 12 of this Guidance.

Further Guidance

25.43 Further guidance about permitted and exempt gaming in clubs can be found in part 29
below.

Page 85



}

f-"grm:,{ng:‘ FILE NOTE

- Directorate of Environment & Regeneration
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

FLARE REF:

U

SUBJECT

OFFICER:

PREMISES Coed Llai Club

Mot

Date:
26L/2/13

Other Ref No:

Analysis

*Best
Value
Time

(62

Tricd the phore auber of  Mart-n Hughes

L?-Mwov'o—c/- IQCu:tja OMZ{—JM"

v V]
puzl et M/’Wo/ .

el arNe PO (e 227, et

lotr . Mo Huobes sad bo Mad bear

. ViA

() thalt tho piltsce hod hosn replied &

Z wn{},”:rwze/ by ke e Sad W,no%@_

suggect wn of o ateck

/)aj“(i/? éq an/ U&/,wé

M{JQ%L%@@Z%@sJWe&/ o g
af of whocoli |

Tt o

Ranresd ot T wordd cophack Ao upm  feg

RS yﬂmﬂ Lrayge £ et up Ha M\J%

J (‘/m//rn/@/ e ir um@/m bo hem ,

ok o0 o Lhe ’2—/3'0 culs bon

Ay ijl. /@f
V /

J

Ui bing being.
N4

Senk o arlt %0%1294 el o Mewber

Total Time

Total Time
Side 1 & 2

Flare

Page 86

This is provided to record total person time for any activity referred to In file notes. Time record can be inserted Into



Mr Martin Hughes

5 Ffordd y Glo _

Leeswood MOL/NFH

Flintshire

CH7 4AJ 27 February 2013
Mr M O Lovatt
01352 703393

Dear Mr Hughes

Gambling Act 2005 / Licensing Act 2003
re - Coed Llal Sports & Social Club, Leeswood

| refer to our telephone discussion on 26 February 2013.

| have been trying to make contact with club officials in order to discuss the gaming
machine and other matters relating to the Club Premises Certificate issued under the
Licensing Act 2003.

As agreed, | would like to invite yourself and Mr Steven Davies, if he is available, and any
other officials of the Club to a meeting at a mutually convenient time.

| am away from work during week beginning Monday, 4 March 2013 so | propose to
contact you by telephone during week commencing 11 March 2013 in order that we can
agree a date and time to meet.

In the meanwhile | will ask the Council’s Finance Division to suspend any further action in
relation to the gaming machine permit until our discussions have taken place.

if you need any further information at this point please contact me.

Yours sincerely

Mo~

Community Protection Manager

Page 87



?_.#g'mym‘“‘ FILE NOTE

Fighir
- Directorste of Environment & Regeneration
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH FLARE REF:
SUBJECT Date: :’stt
PREMISES Coed LlarL Club éta,/,izfﬁ: Time
OFFICER: 'Analysls
(325 Phored Mocts Hughen amd aofesd of he
afllrnoen., '
e said he rooildd like & confact
5[’&/@ LLo Sep I*/ Al Cp-u-lo( &aut.
; He said he woull plione &, back . 1 :éﬂ*é'ﬂa
ry W@&M@w
V4
)
Total Time
Total Time
Side 1 & 2

Flare

Page 88

This is provided to record total person time for any activity referred to In file notes. Time record can be inserted into



?_.F-c”"_”“‘"‘ FILE NOTE ~

Flintshire
COUNTY COUNCL
- Directorute of Environment & Regeneration
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH FLARE REF:
SUBJECT Coed Llai S Cld Date: *Best
20/3/13 Value
PREMISES Other Ref No: Time
OFFICER: m 'Analysls
e ‘:r_ 7 7
’ L IR ) £
f—-
v

2056 Marh 2012 /2.SS
Dhoned and pokee cdtl Marfn Mugtes -

| Uo apolog ed g € back
‘ o u 24 r'w/t,;ea(-

He L ben i cokack gt SCeve Danre

/
S el llﬂmm /-3ompﬁ -iA.‘z Sas o gl

b@_/@ig_m Tl Sdosfe. T saud T
il @M_ﬁ_“{:ﬁzﬁww wheo
SZ 52@/ éég 1@ Mo// %na/awé Total Time
i suaidatoi [ L5 4
25 Magh 2003 ,_//es._(o . P{JMM%&Q_ ‘é?é:'f'i"f

29 Al ok Loty flall  2:0 sudod— (o “Uheven
Dav(g_&%f_g%_ﬂl_éﬁ_@mﬂgm%_ﬂz_m
« This is provided to recerd total gerson time for any activity referméd to in file abtes. Time record can be inserted into

Flare

Page 89



Zs-3-/3
fosted by mo
Fink class of

Mold Fost- O/ﬁu&
Mr Martin Hughes W éo 4 Ao@

5 Ffordd y Glo

Leeswood Lo /lo&/{’ (ons omd
. . MOL/LS
Flintshire
CH7 4AJ Mo colleckcons Erom 25th March 2013
Co uply Hatl Mr. M. O. Lovatt
01352 703393
Dear Mr Hughes,

Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005
Coed Llai Sports & Social Club, Leeswood

Further to our earlier telephone discussion | write to confirm that the meeting
to discuss licensing matters has now beenarranged for 2:00 p.m. on
Wednesday 3™ April 2013 at County Hall, Mold. Please come to Entrance 3
reception and ask for me.

| understand that you wish to check that Mr Steven Davies is okay with 2:00
p.m. Please confirm by telephone to me as soon as possible if the time needs
to be any different.

| will be present at the meeting together with Ann Williams of North Wales
Police Licensing Section and Derek Bebbington of the Gambling Commission.

| look forward to meeting you on the 3™ April. If in the meantime any further
information is required please contact me.

Yours sincerely

Mo

Community Protection Manager

Page 90



) (P Siry Flint |
-t FILE NOTE g

- ™vectorate of Environment & Regeneration
=NVIRONMENTAL HEALTH FLARE REF:
114
SUBJECT W ng Date;, *Best
3 '/ 4 / /3 Value
PREMISES Caed [lal Club ot RbeNo: | | Time
OFFICER: Moz Analysis
2. 00 /}rm Wl capms A//dP and_ M&éﬁ%@‘z_
Total Time
Total Time
Side 1& 2
This Is provided tofecord total person time for any activity referred to in file notes. Time record can be inserted into

L ]
Flare

T

Page 91



O

Mr Martin Hughes :
5 Ffordd y Glo MOL/NFH
II'-'?etva\'n’S)Od 9 April 2013
intshire
CH7 4A) Mr M O Lovatt
01352 703393
Dear Mr Hughes

Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005
Re - Coed Llai Sports & Social Club, Leeswood

Further to our recent telephone discussions | write to confirm that the meeting to discuss
licensing matters has now been arranged for 2:00pm on Tuesday, 16™ April 2013 at
County Hall, Mold. Please come to Entrance 3 reception and ask for me.

I will be present at the meeting together with Ann Williams of North Wales Police Licensing
Section and Derek Bebbington of the Gambling Commission.

If you would prefer the meeting to be at the club premises please contact me on 01352
703393. | can also be contacted on that number if you need any further information.

Yours sincerely

Mo

Community Protection Manager

Page 92



FILE NOTE (contnued) | *Best
“. Value
Time
Analysis
Mon| IS @vr// 20/ 3
n arnvirm b ok T checko! M»t/
,,O/w/w ol Dt ssad o st sge o a
_%m_w_fﬂ_a/‘%g_
%ﬁ,/ 2072 _ab 3kf. The ’
MWJ({’/P cozed ﬂww Mertin Hee ob/ %_4
/»f./m;C/A.é £z> Say Steve codf prake
(a{d//‘c/dx/ e soes the alofiomad Crms
il («uwa(eu/ ond Motk aboy o lies on s "f‘
7 e«m/u[zJﬁvﬂﬂﬂuZZ[cM ond Derel £eg_/éz_}§z@;,
lo /Mcd_aﬁ?;%@m/rrm/w/"
Total Time

issua 8 - Jan 05 EHS/QA/BY
L:Linda\Various/\Flle Note

Page 93



Page 94



[

M Sir y Fflint
Flintshire

FILE NOTE

Attended at the premises last night alongwith Gemma to observe whether there
was any underage sales being made on the premises and also smoking. After
ringing the door buzzer we were approached by a gentleman called Steve Davies
who | had had dealings with in the past conceming the gaming machines, who
said that we couldn't go inside. He became quite agitated and insisted that we
contact Keith Jones the Secretary the next day to arrange a visit with him in
attendance. He said that we couldn't go inside with Mr Jones being present. He
said that Mr Jones was unable to come out then as he has a disabled wife so has
to arrange for someone to sit with her when he's out. | found his manner
agressive particularly so when a very young looking girl opened the club door for
us to go inside. We decided to leave the premises and speak with Mr Jones the
next day.

On Tue 08 Feb 2011 15:02, Rachael Hughes wrote:

Spoke with Keith Jones, Secretary about what happened last night. He asked if
we could arrange a visit as there needed to be 2 officials present. | queried what
position Mr Davies held and he said that he was the Chairman. | asked why he
couldn't take us into the club and Mr Jones said that he wanted him to be there
also. | said that | found Mr Davies' to be agressive and he said that he was sorry
about that but that he is always like that. | said that | would discuss this with
Gemma Brighton before coming back to him to arrange an evening visit. |
explained that | had visited my other club premise in the evening when they were
open and felt that | should treat them all the same.

On Tue 08 Feb 2011 15:08, Rachael Hughes wrote:

Page 95



3

FSir y Fflint
Flintshire

FILE NOTE:

Visited the Club alongwith Ann Williams, Andrea Ellis and Darren Jones from
North Wales Police. Was met by Steve Davies and Keith Jones. Ann explained
that they had received a complaint about underage drinking at the premises and
asked if this was a problem. Mr Davies said that they didn't have any underage
drinking and only had one 17 year old who played darts for their team. He said
that they had altered their rules to allow this. | asked for a copy of their rules and
he promised to send them to me. Mr Davies said that the problem was in the
back car park where youngsters congregated and drank cans purchased from
the 'Prince’. He said that there was a drugs problem on the back playing field with
needles everywhere . He urged the Police to do a drugs raid on the premises
particularly on a Saturday night. | checked the machine upstairs which was
marked 'out of order’. No stickers whatsoever on the machine Cat D ? No AMLD
on display - Steve said that this was because they were paying £2000 duty per
annum so had downgraded the machine to a Cat D - waiting for new certificates.
Club Certificate on display, PRS and insurance. Smoking area to the rear of the
premises, back gate access for disabled via ramp. Steve agreed that if was
difficult to keep the club secure as drinkers could let in who they wanted and get
access into the club. Recently had CCTYV installed in the premises, this covers
most areas including smoking area but not back car park (?) Would like this
covered Mr Davis said. | ured him to keep in contact with the Police re drugs
issues abd he said that they would consider altering Club rules so that they only
need 1 official present if we need to visit again. | gave Mr Davies a Gaming
Machine Permit application form & guidance notes told him that he needed to get
renewal into us no llater than June 2011 as existing expires in August, 2011. He
said he would ask Keith to do this. No Smoking notices on display but gave
Steve some extra ones.

18/2/2011

Rachael Hughes

Page 96



"

“Ellis, Andrea (PCSO 2896)" To "Rachael.hughes@flintshire.gcsx.gov.uk”
<Andrea.Ellis@nthwales.pn <Rachael.hughes@flintshire.gcsx.gov.uk>, "Williams, Ann"
n.police.uk> <ann.williams@nthwales.pnn.police.uk>
23/07/2011 15:48 ce
bce
Faxto

Subject RE: Leeswood

Hi Ann/ Rachael,

I have had a complaint about The Community Centre in Leeswood......... again!

A couple of residents have stated that youths as young as 15 are getting served there.

A couple of weeks ago there was an incident reported in Leeswood whereby 3/4 youths were
involved in some criminal damage approx midnight or so. Feedback from people claim that
these youths may have left the Community centre and could well have been comsuming

Andrea

C 2896 Swyddog Cefnogi Cymuned Yr Heddlu

C 2896 Police Community Support Officer

Gorsaf Heddlu Yr Wyddgrug/Mold Police Station
Ffon/Tel 0845 607 1002

Est/Ext 08110

Blackberry 07854352994

E-bost/E-mail Andrea.Ellis @nthwales.pnn.police.uk

Page 97



20704/ 12

%%?Légéerli"Moﬁaéj}, Xprﬂ”i’&,- 2012 7

— =

A MAN has been banned
from the Leeswood Sports

fofmerly of Loksaswem

%eesw'ood, admitteda -

public order offence and
possessing cocaine.

He was placed ona 12
month community order
under which he must carry
out 100 hours unpaid work.

At Flintshire Magistrates
Court at Mold, District *
Judge Andrew Shaw made
an order under The
Licensing Act excluding
him from the club

Page 98

and Social Club by a court. ***
: - accepted he was drunk but

Club ban for man who
| threatened licensee

for, 1‘?@01;&13. i
. He must pay £85 costs.
~ The judge told himhe -

regardless of‘his intention,

. he had repeatedly

threatened the licensee .
Steven Alis, defending,

* said Williams, 46, accepted
taking drugs in the past but
he had.not taken any that
day. He had drunk alcohol

-which heihad mixed with
the medication he was
taking for depression.

*  Williams, whomow lives in
the Buckley area, did not
recall the incident but
bitterly regretted it.

15



Xz

( ﬂ FW: Leeswood - N214678

- . Michael Lovatt (E-mail) )
‘@ g Williams, Ann to: (Michael.lovati@flintshire.gov.uk) 03/01/2013 16:47

Hi Mike,
Please see below e mail from PCSO Andrea Ellis re Coed Llai Club.
I have looked at the event N214678 and the following is recorded:-
31.12.12 - 23.08.03
Caller requests Police to the King Club — as its all kicked off here.
Officers attend

Three males and one female involved — they are not here, we will take a look
around the area

Negative sightings of these people.

Event recorded as ASB Nuisance

I have not received a reply from Andrea as to whether any further 16" birthday
parties have been booked at this location. I will let you know as soon as.

I met with Inspector Andy Griffiths this afternoon and he has been made aware of
concerns raised.

Page 99



Kind Regards,
Ann

From: Ellis, Andrea (PCSO 2896)
Sent: 03 January 2013 08:03

To: Williams, Ann

Subject: Leeswood - N214678

Hello, how are you, happy New Year, hope you are well?

Can I please make you aware of an incident which took place in Leeswood on New Years eve
- N214678.

An incident was reported regarding a fight which broke out in the grounds of the Community
Centre.

I have been informed there was a birthday party taking place at the social club (upstairs) there
- a 16th birthday party.

The concerns/complaint raised is - indeed a 16th birthday party may have taken place but the
informant believes alcohol was being sold too.

Just to let you know

Andrea

C 2896 Andrea Ellis
Swyddog Cefnogi Cymuned Yr Heddlu

Page 100



Police Community Support Officer

Gorsaf Heddlu Yr Wyddgrug/Mold Police Station
Heddlu Gogledd Cymru/North Wales Police
Ffon/Tel 101

Blackberry 07854352994

E-bost/E-mail Andrea.Ellis @nthwales.pnn.police.uk

HEDDLY GOGLEDD CYMRU
Ungaint Gy diogelach

NORTH WALES POLICE
X ghfor Nt e

Ni ddylid trin e-bost ar y rhyngrwyd fel dull diogel o
gyfathrebu. Mae Heddlu Gogledd Cymru yn monitro'r holl
negeseuon e-bost a drosglwyddir ar y rhyngrwyd yn ogystal &'u
cynnwys.

Dim ond er sylw'r sawl y'i cyfeiriwyd hi ato/ati y bwriedir y
neges hon. Os ydych yn derbyn y neges hon mewn camgymeriad,
gadewch i'r sawl a'i gyrrodd wybod a diléwch hi oddi ar eich
system. Gall defnyddio neu ddatgelu cynnwys y neges hon heb
ganiatédd fod yn anghyfreithlon. Efallai nad yw'r farn a
fynegir yn y ddogfen yn bolisi swyddogol. Diolch i chi am
eich cydweithrediad.

Heddlu Gogledd Cymru

Internet e-mail is not to be treated as a secure means of
communication. North Wales Police monitor all Internet e-mail
activity and content.

This communication is intended for the addressee(s) only.
Please notify the sender if received in error and erase from
your system. Unauthorised use or disclosure of the content
may be unlawful, Opinions expressed in this document may not
be official policy. Thank you for your co-operation.

North Wales Police

Page 101



o '* Rachael To Michael Lovatt/Environment/Flintshire/GB@Flintshire
ae.. Hughes/EnvironmentAndReg
X gl eneration/Flintshire/GB ce
21/01/2013 15:05 bee
Faxto

Subject Coed Llai Club

. £ T L LN BAL LA & M ot 1 2 R 7B N EEIUUUE SR ERE R

Hello Mike,

I've just taken a call from a caller who didn't wish to be identified __.") saying that the
licensee 'Steve' from the Kings Club is in . ..--¢.—1 50 there's no-one
running the club. . 1s. The caller said that she wished to

complain as there should be a licensee there and that people were coming out of the Club in the early
hours of the morning when they shouldn't be.

Rachael
Rachael Hughes,
Licensing Officer/Swyddog Trwyddedu,

Environment & Regeneration/Amgylchedd ac Adfywio,
Tel/Ffon: 01352 702328

Page 102

17



8,
’ Fw: Leeswood Community Centre
Rachael Hughes to: Michael Lovatt 05/02/2013 10:28

Moming Mike,
This is the same phone number as the previous complaint.

regards,
Rachael.

Rachael Hughes,

Licensing Officer/Swyddog Trwyddedu,

Environment & Regeneration/Amgylchedd ac Adfywio,
Tel/Ffon: 01352 702328 :

—— Forwarded by Rachael Hughes/EnvironmentAndRegeneration/Flintshire/GB on 05/02/2013 10:28 —-
S~ James

.f’/,}'::::; Lowe/EnvironmentAndRege To Rachael
\/ ’.'./-”/_—7-'-- neration/Fiintshire/GB Hughes/EnvironmentAndRegeneration/Flintshire/GB@Flints
‘) i 05/02/2013 09:30 hire
~ cc
Faxto

Subject Leeswood Community Centre

Morning Rachael,

Received call from lady who wished to remain anonymous )

saying that 16-17 giris are attending Leeswood Community Centre and leaving drunk between 2-6
am in the morning on Tuesday, Thursday, Friday and Saturday nights after older friends have bought
them alcohol. | said I'd pass it on.

Cheers

James

James Lowe

Licensing Officer/SwyddogTrwddedu

Environment Directorate/Cyfarwyddwr yr Amgyichedd
Tel/Ffon: 01352 703376

Page 103



[9

‘ﬁ) FW: RC13036183

‘z-_:! Williams, Ann to: 'Michael_Lovatt@flintshire.gov.uk' 14/03/2013 14:13
History: This message has been replied to.
CONFIDENTIAL
Mike — FYI
Ann

From: Aldous, Gary (Con 1700)

Sent: 14 March 2013 13:09

To: Griffiths, Andrew (T/Insp 1891); Williams, Ann
Subject: RC13036183

Insp, Ann

The above incident relates to an assault crime that took place inside the club, On the night
Martin Hughes (BAR MANAGER) was very drunk and argumentative stating that if police
did not arrest the person that assaulted him he would kill them and deal with it himself.

He was asked for CCTV as per his licence conditions, he explained that there was a cable
missing, I pointed out to him that it has been missing for some time.

I asked who the person was, knowing that this was a members club, he was not able to say
who he was or where he lived.

We were not to enter the club and he told me that no one in the club wanted to be a witness.

I also noted that the intercom system was not working.

I spoke to him two days later and we have then entered the club, he has stated that he has
spoken to the male involved and no longer wants to make a complaint statement is attached to
the file.

Page 104



Gary 1700

Ni ddylid trin e-bost ar y rhyngrwyd fel dull diogel o
gyfathrebu. Mae Heddlu Gogledd Cymru yn monitro'r holl
negeseuon e-bost a drosglwyddir ar y rhyngrwyd yn ogystal &'u
Cynnwys.

Dim ond er sylw'r sawl y'i cyfeiriwyd hi ato/ati y bwriedir y
neges hon. Os ydych yn derbyn y neges hon mewn camgymeriad,
gadewch i'r sawl a'i gyrrodd wybod a diléwch hi oddi ar eich
system. Gall defnyddio neu ddatgelu cynnwys y neges hon heb
ganiatdd fod yn anghyfreithlon. Efallai nad yw'r farn a
fynegir yn y ddogfen yn bolisi swyddogol. Diolch i chi am
eich cydweithrediad.

Heddlu Gogledd Cymru

Internet e-mail is not to be treated as a secure means of
communication. North Wales Police monitor all Internet e-mail
activity and content.

This communication is intended for the addressee(s) only.
Please notify the sender if received in error and erase from
your system. Unauthorised use or disclosure of the content
may be unlawful, Opinions expressed in this document may not
be official policy. Thank you for your co-operation.

North Wales Police

Page 105



20

Gemma M To Michael Lovatt/Environment/Flintshire/GB@Flintshire
Potter/EnvironmentAndRegen
eration/Flintshire/GB ce
09/04/2013 10:30 bee
Fax to

Subject Coed Llai Club

Mike
Just to make you aware the same lady | spoke to a few weeks ago in relation to Coed Llai Club has been
on the phone again this morning to complain that people were in the premises until 3am again over the

weekend. Then when they come out they are laughing and joking, drinking outside and causing a
disturbance.

The lady wont leave her details, wont report it to the Police and wont inform Pollution
Thanks

Gemma

Gemma Potter

Team Leader | Arweinydd Tim

Licensing | Trwyddedu

Environment | Amgyichedd

Flintshire County Council | Cyngor Sir y Fflint

Tel | Ffén | 01352 703371
Email | Ebost | gemma.potter@flintshire.gov.uk

http://www.flintshire.gov.uk | http://www.siryfflint.gov.uk

http://www.twitter.com/flintshirecc | http://www.twitter.com int

Page 106



|

- _ FW: COED LLAI SPROTS AND SOCIAL CLUB LEESWOOD
4 Williams, Ann to: 'Michael_Lovatt@flintshire.gov.uk' 17/04/2013 12:06

Hi Mike,

FYI

From: Ellis, Andrea (PCSO 2896)

Sent: 17 April 2013 10:37

To: Williams, Ann

Ce: Richards, Susan F (Sgt 1464)

Subject: COED LLAI SPROTS AND SOCIAL CLUB LEESWOOD

Hello Ann,
Hope you are well, and had a nice weekend?

I need to make you aware that I have spoken with a resident this morning who lives in
Leeswood.

She has complained to me that this morning at 05.10am she was woken up by 4 people
leaving the Coed Llai social club.

She says this is a common occurrence most weekends and believes the club is serving through
the night and card games are taking place.

She also added they are continuing to serve under age!!!!

If you want me to assist in any way, by all means let me know.

Page 107



Speak to you soon.

Andrea

C 2896 Andrea Ellis

Swyddog Cefnogi Cymuned Yr Heddlu

Police Community Support Officer

Gorsaf Heddlu Yr Wyddgrug/Mold Police Station
Heddlu Gogledd Cymru/North Wales Police
Ffon/Tel 101

Blackberry 07854352994

E-bost/E-mail Andrea.Ellis @nthwales.pnn.police.uk

HEDDLU GOGLEDD CYMHU
10 GG

NORTH WALES POLICE

solor o W

Ni ddylid trin e-bost ar y rhyngrwyd fel dull diogel o
gyfathrebu. Mae Heddlu Gogledd Cymru yn monitro'r holl
negeseuon e-bost a drosglwyddir ar y rhyngrwyd yn ogystal a'u
Cynnwys.

Dim ond er sylw'r sawl y'i cyfeiriwyd hi ato/ati y bwriedir y
neges hon. Os ydych yn derbyn y neges hon mewn camgymeriad,
gadewch i'r sawl a'i gyrrodd wybod a diléwch hi oddi ar eich
system. Gall defnyddio neu ddatgelu cynnwys y neges hon heb
ganiatdd fod yn anghyfreithlon. Efallai nad yw'r farn a
fynegir yn y ddogfen yn bolisi swyddogol. Diolch i chi am
eich cydweithrediad.

Heddlu Gogledd Cymru

Internet e-mail is not to be treated as a secure means of
communication. North Wales Police monitor all Internet e-mail
activity and content.

This communication is intended for the addressee(s) only.
Please notify the sender if received in error and erase from
your system. Unauthorised use or disclosure of the content
may be unlawful, Opinions expressed in this document may not
be official policy. Thank you for your co-operation.

North Wales Police

Page 108



Flintshire County Council

Mr Paul Morris ’ / (5}2 4—
; R

Lynwood County Hall

King Street S Mold

Leeswood Co '- CH7 6NB

Mold B

CH74SB b R Attention of :Rachael Hughes.

16 May 2013 ref: Application Coed Llay S&SC Leeswood.
Dear Rachael

[ am writing to apply on behalf of Leeswood community as to whether it would be possible to be
granted permission to form a committee of residents/members in regards to the Coed Llay
sports and social club (Kings Club) based on King Street Leeswood.

Currently it is being run by a Mr Steven Messham but the committee has dishanded due to poor
running of the club and Mr Messham has informed me he is no longer going to be involved with
the club and is moving out the area.

I am a very well respected local businessman employing 46 full time staff who lives directly
opposite the club in question.

I have a very close relationship with Flintshire County Council  have been presented with many
awards from FCC over the last 3 years for business related achievements within Flintshire.

[ have been informed that | am having a visit from head of FCC Mr Colin Everett in relation to a
recent Flintshire business award we won,

| have invested just over £12,000 into the club over the last twelve months with refurbishments
and decoration to bring the club up to a standard that can be enjoyed by the people of Leeswood.

My aim would be to form a brand new committee.

Licensee Chairman ,Vice Chairman, Secretary, Treasurer, Book keeper, Health and safety officer,
Cominittee members and a local councilor.

The accounts would be run and by sage software and monthly management accounts would be
available for inspection.

The club would be run on a membership scheme basis and provide funds for local clubs such as
Leeswood bowling club, Fishing Club, Football Club and another good causes that the village may
need on application to the ciub committee.

The newly forming committee has already had a brief meeting and everybody is really keen to
have the club open again as many fundraising ideas were brought up in the conversation for
peopie with health problems in the village.

Having lived in the village and visiting the club regularly it was clear that the club was not being
run in the proper manner regarding a full committee of members and was going into decline,

As a business person | could see that a non profiting venture like this needs managing properly
and work hand in hand with the community and the regulations set out by FCC.

My view is that it was in need of someone with a business mind to oversee the
expenditure/income and the legalities of the club and bring a more secure safe place for staff and
customers to enjoy.

At the moment the club is under review with FCC due to poor running and | have agreed with Mr
Messham that the club remain closed until we have a new management team enrolled in the club
if successful with this first letter of interest and appiication.

I do hope you will accept my application letter and hopefully together the Leeswood committee
members and myself can reform a brand new board of members and give Leeswood a very
much-needed social club to enjoy and be proud of.

Yours sincerely

Paul Morris

Page 109




e c
Mr Paul Morris : , {f?z 4"}};,1, _ Flintshire County Council
Lynwood : £ {200 County Hall
King Street - o Molkd
Leeswood b : CH7 6NB
Mold L e
CH74SB o] Attention of :Rachael Hughes.

16 May 2013 ref : AppHcation Coed Llay S&SC Leeswood.
Dear Rachael

[ am writing to apply on behalf of Leeswood community as to whether it would be possible to be
granted permission to form a committee of residents/members in regards to the Coed Llay
sports and social club (Kings Club) based on King Street Leeswood.

Currently it is being run by a Mr Steven Messham but the committee has disbanded due to poor
running of the club and Mr Messham has informed me he is no longer going to be involved with
the chub and is moving out the area.

I am a very well respected local businessman employing 46 full time staff who lives directly
opposite the club in question.

I have a very close relationship with Flintshire County Council I have been presented with many
awards from FCC over the last 3 years for business related achievements within Flintshire.

[ have been informed that ] am having a visit from head of FCC Mr Colin Everett in relation to a
recent Flintshire business award we won.

I have invested just over £12,000 into the club over the last twelve months with refurbishments
and decoration to bring the club up to a standard that can be enjoyed by the people of Leeswood.

My aim would be to form a brand new commitiee.

Licensee Chairman ,Vice Chairman, Secretary, Treasurer, Book keeper, Health and safety officer,
Comuittee members and a focal councilor.

The accounts would be run and by sage software and monthly management accounts would be
available for inspection.

The club would be run on a membership scheme basis and provide funds for local clubs such as
Leeswood bowling club, Fishing Club, Football Club and another good causes that the village may
need on application to the club committee.

The newly forming committee has already had a brief meeting and everybody is really keen to
have the club open again as many fundraising ideas were brought up in the conversation for
people with health problems in the village.

Having lived in the village and visiting the club regularly it was clear that the club was not being
run in the proper manner regarding a full committee of members and was going into decline.

As a business person [ could see that a non profiting venture like this needs managing properly
and work hand in hand with the community and the regulations set out by FCC.

My view is that it was in need of someone with a business mind to oversee the
expenditure/income and the legalities of the club and bring a more secure safe place for staff and
customers to enjoy.

At the moment the club is under review with FCC due to poor running and I have agreed with Mr
Messham that the club remain closed until we have a new management team enrolied in the club
if successful with this first letter of interest and application.

I do hope you will accept my application letter and hopefully together the Leeswood committee
members and myseif can reform a brand new board of members and give Leeswood a very
much-needed social club to enjoy and be proud of.

Yours sincerely

Paul Morris

Page 110




Leeswood Community Council

G N I Jones o
Clerk to the Council L/ M
4 Howards Close
Pen-y-ffordd
Chester
Tel. 01244 547440

The Clerk to the Licencing Panel
Flintshire County Council
County Hall

Mold

Flintshire

16" May 2013
Dear Sir

Re Licensing Laws

At the last meeting of the Community Council a member referred that at one time Town and
Community Councils were notified of all matters with regard to licensing, for example if there was
an application for an extension of hours, if and when a public house changed licensee, occasional
licenses etc.

As you will be aware this no longer happens I would question now what is the policy for
consultation.

The discussion then lengthened as to whether there was any diffferential with regard to the licensing
laws for clubs and public houses.

Furthermore reference was made to the fact that what was once called the Coed Llay Sports and
Social Club, is now called The Kings Club.Can a club such as this change its name as a matter of
course, or does an application have to be made to do this.

I look forward to hearing from you in due course.

Yours faithfully

G N1 Jones
(5. ( enderiband dhat Lhey ovig %
N s e Sloshinsy B vy p

-




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 112



HEDDLU GOGLEDD CYMRU
" Gogledd Cymru diogelach

17" May, 2013

Mr, Michael Lovatt,

Community Protection Manager,
Flintshire County Council,
County Hall,

Mold,

Flintshire.

CH7 6NH

Dear Mr. Lovatt,

NORTH WALES POLICE
A safer North Wales

REVIEW APPLICATION — COED LLAI SPORTS AND SOCIAL CLUB

I write with reference to an application for the review of Club Premises Certificate — CAOO15 -
Coed Llai Sports and Social Club, King Street, Leeswood, Flintshire. CH7 4RU

North Wales Police wish to make the foliowing representations:-

North Wales Police support the grounds for review, put forward by Flintshire County Council and
consider that poor management of the premises is the most significant factor resulting in the recurring

concerns at this premise.

There have been a number of issues related to the running of the club that have given rise for
concern, which are outlined in the review application and evidenced by supporting documentation.

North Wales Police, Local Authority and the Gambling Commission believed a stepped approach
to engage with representatives of the club, reference the Licensed Premises Review Procedure, (copy
attached) to be a fair and effective way in addressing concerns at this premise.

Unfortunately, despite efforts to arrange to meet, representatives failed to attend our scheduled
meetings, resulting in this application for a Review of the Club Premises Certificate.

Since the submission of this review application, a further incident has been reported to North
Wales Police. Police Reference Event P073179 refers. This incident occurred at 19.58 hours on 11%

May, 2013, whereby a person identifying himself as the Chairman of the Coed Llai Club has contacted
North Wales Police reporting that his bar staff have contacted him stating that there are two males and
a female at the location kicking off. A further call is made to North Wales Police and it is established that

www. heddiu-gogledd-cymru.police. uk

Swyddog Trwyddedu’r

Gorsaf Heddlu,

Bodhyfryd, Wrexham. LL12 7BW

E mail-ann.williams@nthwales.pnn.police.uk
Ffon — 01978 348553

Svmudol - 07896172313

www. north-wales.police.uk

Cont/..
/ Licensing Officer

Police Station

Bodhyfryd, Wrexham LL12 78W

Page 1 E3nail-ann.williams@nthwales.pnn.police.uk
Tel — 01978 348553

Mobile - 07896172313




Sy

the incident relates to an allegation of theft of items. The Manager who had called this in to North Wales
stated he had called this in in panic. The incident was therefore closed as Anti Social Behaviour and all
involved were given advice.

Yours faithfully,

Ann Williams
Eastern Licensing Officer

cC Inspector Iwan Jones, North Wales Police, South Flintshire
Police Sergeant 1891 Andrew Griffiths, North Wales Police, South Flintshire

Page 114



Incorporating Problem Solving Group Approch

Licensed Premises Review Procedure

Police Referrals (and

other agencies)

Licensing Authority

_ Local Authority
Office

Y
A

Dept. Referrals

Informal
Resolution
with Premises
User/DPS

Police Divisional

Licensing Office

h 4

l

Problem

F

Assessment of scale of problem measured
against 4 Key Licensing Objectives

LE\l/EL ONE

Formal Joint Visit to Premises User and DPS by

Resolved
NFA

!

Continue
Monitoring
(Licensing

Teams)

|

Problem
Resolved
NFA

Licensing Officers (written record)
1
Continuation of Problems

LEVEL TWO

Invitation for Premises User and DPS to
meeting with following: Local Police
Inspector, Police Licensing Officer, LA
Licensing Officer, (Written record)

!

Action Plan

Y
Continuation of Problems

LEVELlTHREE

Y

REVIEW OF LICENCE

F 3

At any level it can be decided depending on the merits of the case to apply for a review of a premises
ficence. Progression to each level is an optional process and this flowchart is designed as a template for

progress and monitoring of troublesome Licensed Premises culrinating in a review of the licene

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 116



LEESWOOD CENTRE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Leeswood
. Mold
\ CH7 SHL

\ P L d Cent
[ (528 i e

13-05-13
Dear Sir / Madam

Re Coed LLai Sports & Social Club, King Street JLeeswood

We are writing with regard to the notice displayed with regard to the re- licensing of the above.
The committee are very concerned with regard to the outstanding rental fees owed to the
management committee.

We have experienced difficulty with the payments for some time now as they are not being paid ¢
a monthly basis. Since the club opened in 1995 the rental has been £60 until the club was recently
taken over under new management when it was reduced to £40 for a few months and when
established has now gone back to £60. Surely this amount should be raised with inflation.

The last payment we received was on the 14-01-13 for £520, an invoice was issued on the 26-02-1:
for the water bill for £127-80p which we still have not received.
We feel you should be aware of the situation before a new licence is renewed.

We look forward to your reply.

Yours sincerely

DQ L)cuwﬁ)

D. C. Venables
Chairman

VA Ao
M.L.Heyward
Secretary

Page 117




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 118



Coed Llai Sports and Social Club King Street, Leeswood

Outstanding Debts at 20" May 2013 (information provided by Flintshire
County Council Finance Department)

1. Gambling Act 2005 Annual Fee for Club Machine Permit £50.00

2. Annual Fee for trade waste collection 2012* £325.52
3. Five months rent @ £260 per month £1300.00
4. Water charges £127.80

(Owed to Community Centre)

Total £1803.32

*The trade waste bin will be removed and no further collections will be made
from 24 April 2013.

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 120



	Agenda
	3 Application for a Private Hire / Hackney Carriage (Joint) Driver Licence
	Enc. 1 for Application for a Private Hire / Hackney Carriage (Joint) Driver Licence
	Enc. 2 for Application for a Private Hire / Hackney Carriage (Joint) Driver Licence
	Enc. 3 for Application for a Private Hire / Hackney Carriage (Joint) Driver Licence
	Enc. 4 for Application for a Private Hire / Hackney Carriage (Joint) Driver Licence

	4 Review of a Club Premises Certificate
	Enc. 1 for Review of a Club Premises Certificate
	Enc. 2 for Review of a Club Premises Certificate
	Enc. 3 for Review of a Club Premises Certificate
	Enc. 4 for Review of a Club Premises Certificate
	Enc. 5 for Review of a Club Premises Certificate
	Enc. 6 for Review of a Club Premises Certificate


